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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of JSW Steel Coated Products Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of JSW Steel Coated Products
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

v

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. tf
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

() On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Fydow

per Suresh Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 119878
UDIN: 20119878AAAACE3137
Ptace of Signature: Mumbai N
Date: May 11, 2020 o=
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of ‘Reporting on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' of our report of even date

Re: JSW Steel Coated Products Limited (“the Company')

@ (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
Quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the company except for the immovable properties which were transferred to the
Company by virtue of scheme of amalgamation approved by high court and these are in
process of being registered in the name of the Company. Details of the same is as below

As at March 31, 2020 (Rs. in
Total Number of | Nature of immovable | Crore)

e0ses Rrigpenty Gross Block Net block
2 Free hold land 0.05 0.05
D) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,

the frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not advanced loans to directors or to a Company in which the Director is interested to which
provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not commented upon.
In respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities
given provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013 have been complied with by the
Company.

w) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of steel coils and sheets, and
are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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(a) The Company is generally regular depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

(vii)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax,
sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable

(©) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales- tax,
wealth-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess on account
of any dispute, are as follows:

Period to
Amount which the
Name of the Nature (Rs. in amount
Statute of Dues crores) relates Forum where dispute is pending
0.18 2001-05 Bombay High Court
. . 2002 to
I\rc‘ff (lzgma' Excise g’lﬁ'yse 14.84 2016-17 | CESTAT, Mumbai
' 4.52 1993 to Commissionerate Level
2016-17
7.19 2012-13 CESTAT, Mumbai
Ig‘ézc“smms At | Customs 1993-94, -
0.63 2009-10 Commissioner of Customs, Mumbai
The Bombay Sales
Tax Act, 1959 sales .
! Tax 3.26 2003-04 The Sales Tax Tribunal, Nagpur
2012-13 to | Asst./Dy. Commissioner, Sales Tax,
Maharashtra Value 4.88 2016-17 Mumbai
Added Tax, 2002 Sales 2007-08, Jt. Commissioner (Appeals), Sales
Tax 50.38 2009-10 Tax, Mumbai
3.50 2007-10 CESTAT, Mumbai
Dy. Commissioner of Sales Tax,
0.08 2013-14 Mazgoan
Telangana VAT | Sales
Act, 2005 Tax 8.55 2013-16 Commercial Tax Officer, Hyderabad
34.66 2004-05 to
Chapter V of the | Service 2016-17 | CESTAT, Mumbai
Finance Act, 1994 | Tax 2.22 2005-06 to
2017-18 Commissionerate Level
The Income Tax | Income 2013-14 to
Act, 1961 Tax 20.10 2016-17 CIT (Appeals)

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,

the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution,
bank or government or dues to debenture holders.
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(ix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer
or further public offer or debt instruments.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the private
placement of shares during the year. According to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that the amounts raised, have been used for the purposes for
which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-|A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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per Suresh Yadav aﬁf" 74 o \\
Partner t 844
Membership Number: 119878 K\ j j’

UDIN: 20119878AAAACE3137
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 11, 2020
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ANNEXURE “2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMTED

(Referred toin paragraph 1(g) under "Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements” section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JSW Steel Coated Products
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these  financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Fodoy

per Suresh Yadav

Partner

Membership Number: 119878
UDIN: 20119878AAAACE3137
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 11, 2020




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
CIN - U27100MH1985P1L.C037346
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Rupees in crores)

Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 2,021.91 2,319.34
Capital work in progress 2,364.23 997.60
Right-of-use assets 37 261.62 -
Intangible assets 5 1.91 3.67
Investment in Subsidiaries 6 0.22 -
Financial assets 7
Investments 42.61 69.93
Deposits 12.08 12.73
Loans 3.18 4.21
Other non-current financial assets 101.23 41.59
Income tax assets (net) 21.35 21.17
Other non-current assets 8 68.03 105.82
4,898.37 3,576.06
(2) Current assets
Inventories 9 1,635.22 1,287.48
Financial assets
Trade receivabies 10 433.80 340.76
Cash and cash equivalents 11 350.04 78.30
Derivative Instruments 7 7.66 41.44
Deposits 7 0.23 0.23
Loans 7 1.02 1.15
Other current financial assets 7 26.67 46.94
Other current assets 12 420.26 291.53
Assets classified as held for sale 4 2.33 6.14
2,777.23 2,093.97
TOTAL ASSETS 7,675.60 5,670.03
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
Equity share capital 13 800.05 50.05
Other equity 14
Retained earnings 780.60 490.07
Other reserves 1,179.39 1,271.78
2,760.04 1,811.90
(2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 2,319.58 1,281.64
Lease Liabilities 37 18.60 -
Long-term provisions 20 1.51 1.63
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 17 190.72 333.45
2,530.41 1,616.72
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 300.89 2.20
Lease Liabilities 37 1.87 -
Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 7.69 5.19
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 950.94 1,628.79
Derivative liabilities 16 61.42 7.89
Other current financial liabilities 16 789.00 421.67
Other current liabilities 19 187.79 207.08
Liabilities for current tax (net) 4.64 -
Short-term provisions 20 80.91 68.59
2,385.15 2,241.41
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,675.60 5,670.03
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003

per Suresﬁ‘Yadav

Partner
Membership No : 119878
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Place: Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajeev Pai Amarijit Singh Dahiya
Director Whole Time Director
DIN:00045604 Head (Coated Products)
' DIN:08178338 J
eepll Walawalkar Hemant Shete
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ICS| Membership No. A24818
Place: Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2020



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
CIN - U27100MH1985PLC037346

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Rupees in crore)

Note  Forthe year ended Forthe year ended

No.
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from operations 21 11,675.28 12,323.84
Other income 22 32.19 2.59
Total income 11,707.47 12,326.43
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 23 8,825.17 10,006.68
Purchases of traded goods 661.35 169.18
Changes in inventories of finished goods and semi finished goods 24 (219.36) (36.03)
Employee benefits expense 25 274.53 256.71
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 161.25 133.79
Finance costs 27 144.54 140.96
Other expenses 28 1,583.82 1,534.69
Total expenses 11,431.30 12,205.98
Profit before Tax 276.17 120.45
Tax expense: 17
Current tax 95.66 30.06
Deferred tax (115.35) 10.76
(19.69) 40.82
Profit for the year 295.86 79.63
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Net movement on cash flow hedges (91.72) 40.39
Income tax effect 26.66 (14.11)
Net other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: (65.06) 26.28
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (2.83) (4.24)
Income tax effect 0.71 1.48
(2.12) (2.76)
Net (loss)/ gain on fair value of equity securities (27.33) (4.28)
Income tax effect - -
(27.33) (4.28)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: (29.45) (7.04)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (94.51) 19.24
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax attributable to equity shareholders:
Profit for the year 295.86 79.63
Total comprehensive income for the year 201.35 98.87
Earnings per equity share:
Basic and Diluted (Face value per share Rs.10) 33 5.20 15.91
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalif of the Board of Directors

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
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ICAl Registration No : 324982E/ E300003 \‘
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Rajeev Pai Amarijit Singh Dahiya
Director Whole Time Director
DIN:00045604 Head (Coated Products)

DIN:08178338

eepti Walawalkar Hemant Shete
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
ICS| Membership No. A24818
Place: Mumbai

Date : May 11, 2020

per Suresh Yadav
Partner
Membership No : 119878

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 11, 2020




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

CIN - U27100MH1985PLC037346
Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Rupees in crores)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortization expenses

(Profit) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)

Loss of property, plant and equipment due to fire
Interest income

Dividend income from non current investment
Gain on sale of Mutual Fund

Interest expenses

Unrealised exchange {gain) / loss

Income from Government grant

Provision for Doubtful Advances

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital :
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/ (Increase) in other assets
(Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables
Increase in other liabilities

Increase in provisions

Cash generated from / {(used in) operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipments and capital advances

Purchase of non current Investments

Investment in Subsidiaries

Gain on Sale Mutual Fund

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments
Loans repaid by related parties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash flow used in investing activities (B)

o] Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (net)
Repayment of Lease liabilities
Proceeds from non current borrowings
Repayment of non current borrowings
Proceeds from/(Repayment) of current borrowings (net)
Interest paid
Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

With banks

- on term deposit

- on current account

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance
Add: Margin deposit account (earmarked money)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Registration No : 324982E/ E300003
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276.17 12045
161.25 133,79
0.83 (0.32)
5.69 :
(24.93) (2.27)
(0.90) -
(0.15) ;
144.54 140,96
60.77 (10.63)
(3.30) (5.41)
11.62 20.00
355.42 276.12_
631.59 396.57
(247.73) 266
(87.81) 80.81
(229.35) 167.60
(587.50) 223.56
7.18 94.75
9.36 5.65
(1,135.65) 575.03
(504.06) 971.60
(91.20) (73.48)
(595.26) 898.12
(799.06) (1,076.44)
= (38.37)
(0.22) .
0.15
7.66 11.71
115 1.85
24.94 1.37
0.90 :
(764.48) (1,099.88)
746.79 -
(3.56) =
889.89 769.65
(97.67) (367.10)
298.69 2.20
(202.66) (174.44)
1,631.48 230.31
271.74 28.55
78.30 49.75
350.04 78.30
0.07 0.06
243.83 73.56
106.14 467
350.04 78.20
o 0.01
350.04 78.30
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o

Rajeev Pai
Director
DIN:00045604
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Deepti Walawalkar
Company Secretary

Amarjit Singh Dahiya
Whole Time Director
Head (Coated Products)
DIN: 081768338
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Date : May 11, 2020
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity
A. Equity Share Capital

(Rupees in crores)

As at April 01, 2018 Movement during 2018-19 As at March 31, 2019 Movement during the year As at March 31, 2020
50.05 - 50.05 750 800.05
B. Other Equity (Rupees in crores)
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Iltems of OCI Total Other |
Capital General Retained Cash flow FVTOCI reserve Equity
Reserve Reserve earnings | hedge reserve
As at April 1, 2018 1,263.49 2.47 413.20 (2.47) (13.71) 1,662.98
Profit for the year - - 79.63 - - 79.63
Other comprehensive income - - (2.76) 26.28 (4.28) 19.24
Total comprehensive income - - 76.87 26.28 (4.28) 98.87
As at March 31, 2019 1,263.49 2.47 490.07 23.81 (17.99) 1,761.85 |
Profit for the year - - 295.86 - - 295.86 |
Other comprehensive income - - (2.12) (65.06) (27.33) (94.51)
Total comprehensive income - - 293.74 (65.06) (27.33) 201.35
Share issue expenses - - (3.21) (3.21)
-| As at March 31, 2020 1,263.49 2.47 780.60 (41.25) (45.32) 1,959.99 |
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants y-od
ICAI Registration No : 324982E/ E300003 @%W/L—/
Lrodoy z
per Suresh Yadav Rajeev Pai Amarjit Singh Dahiya
Partner Director Whole Time Director
Membership No : 119878 DIN:00045604 Head (Coated Products)

DIN:08178338

Dot G

Place: Mumbai Deepti Walawalkar Hemant Shete

Date : May 11, 2020 : Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. General Information

JSW Steel Coated Products Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company incorporated
in India. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited which is listed on the Bombay
Stock Exchange and National Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is JSW
Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai — 400 051.

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of value added steel products which
mainly consists of Galvanized and Galvalume Coils / Sheets, Colour Coated Coils/ Sheets and
Tin Plate. The Company caters to both domestic and international markets.

The Company has three manufacturing facilities in the State of Maharashtra at Vasind, Tarapur
and Kalmeshwar.

The Financial Statements of JSW Steel Coated Products Limited as at March 31, 2020 were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on May 11, 2020.

2. Significant Accounting policies
|. Basis of preparation

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is
required to prepare its financial statements under the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS')
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. Accordingly, the Company has
prepared these Financial Statements which comprise the Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2020,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020, and significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual
basis, except for the derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and liabilities
(refer Accounting policy for Financial Instrument) which have been measured at fair value or
revalued amount required by relevant Ind AS at the end of the reporting period. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR'), except otherwise indicated.

Current and non-current classifications

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- ltis expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's
normal operating cycle.

- ltis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,

- itis expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- itis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- itis expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
—==._least 12 months after the reporting date.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.
Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, investments in equity
securities at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

s In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

S



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

lIl. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognitions a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and their associated liabilites once classified
as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

IV. Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has concluded that
it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is
tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government.
Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized

Sale of goods

An entity shall account revenue from a contract with a customer only when all of the following
criteria are met:

(a) the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance
with other customary business practices) and are committed to perform their respective
obligations;

(b) the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;
(c) the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

(d) the contract has commercial substance (ie the risk, timing or amount of the entity's future
cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and

(e) it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in
exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer

The amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated
in the contract if the consideration is variable because the entity may offer the customer a price
concession.

(iY Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount
: of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.
"ib/f.c’m& C’.;Q\ The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with a right to volume rebates
which gives rise to variable consideration.

» Volume rebates

The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with
a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more than one
volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration
is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company
then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and
recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

Sale of services
Income from service rendered is recognised on accrual basis based on the terms of agreements
and when services are rendered.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition '

Contract Asset:

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the

customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the
earned consideration including Trade receivables

Contract Liabilities:

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due

(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs

under the contract including Advance received from Customer

Leasing

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That
is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense
in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below Rs. 5,00,000). Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

VI. Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which has been determined on the
basis of the primary economic environment in which it operates.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the
entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks.

VIl. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds including interest on letter of credit discounted by bank and payable to
bank.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization as the actual
borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of those borrowings, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and
uses the funds for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization are
determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

Borrowing cost include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the finance cost

Vill. Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate or when performance obligations are met. Specifically,
—- government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or

Yo, 0.8 Co Jetherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue in the balance sheet
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

and transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest and effect of this favorable
interest is treated as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognized and
measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the fair
value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates and the proceeds received and
recognised to the income statement immediately on fulfillment of the performance obligations.
The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. For defined benefit
retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settlements);

e netinterest expense or income; and

¢ Re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the
line item employee benefits expenses. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service costs. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available
in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. A liability
for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring
costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the

present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

X. Taxation

Xl

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other thanina
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets on non-depreciable
assets, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its

e purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes
(other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities),

o any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, including

relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and

any expected costs of decommissioning.



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Xil.

Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the costs are incurred. Major shut-down and overhaul expenditure is capitalized as the
activities undertaken improves the economic benefits expected to arise from the asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under construction account. At
the point when an asset is operating at management's intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences. Costs associated with the commissioning of an asset and any obligatory
decommissioning costs are capitalized where the asset is available for use but incapable of
operating at normal levels until a period of commissioning has been completed. Revenue
generated from production during the trial period is capitalized.

Property, Plant and Equipment except Freehold Land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purpose are stated in the Financial Statement at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less

its estimated residual value. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the asset as follows:

Sr. Particulars Useful life estimated by the
No management (years)

1 | Factory Buildings B 9-40

2 | Other Buildings 560

3 | Railway Siding 15

4 | Plant and Equipments 3-43

5.| Rolls used in Cold Rolling Mill (included in 1

Plant and Equipments)

6 | Furniture and Fixtures 10

7 | Vehicles 8

8 | Office Equipments 5

9 | Computers | 3or6

The Company based on technical assessment made by technical experts and management
estimate, depreciates certain items over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on straight line method.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease,
except where the lease is convertible to freehold land under lease agreements at future dates
at no additional cost.

Where the cost of a part of the asset is significant to total cost of the asset and the useful life of
that part is different from the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of the significant part
has been determined separately.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in

"0 accounting estimate on a prospective basis.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

XIll. Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated Amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and Amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Computer software is amortized over the useful life of 5 years as estimated by management.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

XIV. Research and Development

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Development costs of products are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a
product's technical feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is
capitalised.

XV. Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-

generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the

increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in

prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit

Dol and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
% ¢, of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

XVI.

XVII.

XVIIL

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of inventories comprise
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Interest charges, if any, on purchases have been recorded
as Finance Cost. Cost is determined by the weighted average cost method except for procured
Hot rolled coils/ Cold rolled coils as Raw material and its content in Finished goods and Semi
finished goods, which is valued on specific identification basis.

Semi-finished goods/ finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on
normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis except in case of
Hot rolled coils/ Cold rolled coils as noted above. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Traded Goods are valued at lower of cost or NRV,
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive),
as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably
estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when
the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as
provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and
Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are recognised
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

a)

b)

Financial assets

Initial Recognition and measurement

The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issues and
subordinated liabilities on the date on which they originate. All other financial instruments
(including regular way purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognized on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortized cost, FVOCI or
FVTPL

Financial assets at amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated at FVTPL:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included
in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

This category generally applies to Trade and other receivables.

Debt Instruments at FVTOCI

A financial asset is classified as FVTOCI only if it meets both the of the following conditions and
is not recognized at FVTPL,;

e The assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial Asset included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial
asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity Instrument-

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive

- income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on an




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

c)

d)

instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the

amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the
company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gains and losses arising on remeasurement recognized in statement of profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognized in statement of profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'other income' line item. Dividend on financial
assets at FVTPL is recognized when:

e The Company's right to receive the dividends is established,

e ltis probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividends will flow to the
entity,

e The dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

Impairment of Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets
that are not measured at FVTPL:

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected
life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not
cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit
loss model in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality
as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on
12-month expected credit losses.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account
historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in
the ‘Other income' line item.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in

equity. No gain or loss is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial
liabilities'.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Trade payables and other financial liabilities:

The Company enters into deferred payment arrangements (acceptances) whereby overseas lenders
such as banks and other financial institutions make payments to supplier’s banks for import of raw
materials and property, plant and equipments. The banks and financial institutions are subsequently
repaid by the Company at a later date providing working capital benefits. These arrangements are in
the nature of credit extended in normal operating cycle and settled within 12 months. These
arrangements for raw materials are recognized as Acceptances (under trade payables) and
arrangements for property, plant and equipments are recognised as other financial liabilities. Interest
borne by the company on such arrangements is accounted as finance cost.

Derecognition of Financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

lll. Reclassification of financial assets

The comipany determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model,
The company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

" Original Revised |Accounting treatment
_classification |classification il
Amortized cost | FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference

between previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

FVTPL Amortized Cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying|
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount.

Amortized cost | FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference

between previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in
OCI. No change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortized cost | Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortized
cost carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
as if it had always been measured at amortized cost.

FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment is required.
FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or

loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss at the reclassification date.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Iv.

VL.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financials assets and financials liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes
some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in
the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through Statement of Profit or Loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the
company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification
requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all
other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
Statement of Profit or Loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Hedge accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded
derivatives and non-derivatives in respect of foreign currency and commodity risk, as either cash
flow hedge, fair value hedge or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of
foreign currency risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

e Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

e Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm
commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the
company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/
economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge
ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair
value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine
that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which
they were designated.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(i)

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk
hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value
is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method.
EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged
item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit and loss.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement
of profit and loss.

The Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency
risk in forecast transactions and firm commitments, as well as forward commodity contracts for
its exposure to volatility in the commodity prices. The ineffective portion relating to foreign
currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the ineffective portion relating to
commodity contracts is recognised in other income or expenses. Refer Statement of Changes in
Equity for more details.

Amounts recognised as OCl are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects
profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or
when a forecast sale occurs.

When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts
recognised as OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or
rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign
currency firm commitment is met.

XIX. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

XX. Earnings per share

XXI.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing income
available to shareholders and assumed conversion by the weighted average number of
common shares and potential common shares from outstanding stock options. Potential
common shares are calculated using the treasury stock method and represent incremental
shares issuable upon exercise of the Company’s outstanding stock options.

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are shown at cost. Where the carrying
amount of an investment in greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss

3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting judgements

In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future period, if the revision affects
current and future period.

a. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

i)

i

ii)

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at
least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical lives of
the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external factors
including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed
annually using the best information available to the Management.

Refer note 2 (XI1) for useful life estimated by management for depreciation of Property Plant
and equipment.

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims

against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or
are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not recognized measurements (Refer note 37 (b))

Fair value measurements

Management uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants are applied. Other financial instruments are valued using a discounted cash flow
method based on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market prices or
rates. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 39(h).
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

iv) Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax

planning strategies.

v) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of a strain of the
new coronavirus ("COVID-19") as a pandemic. This outbreak is causing significant disturbances
and slow down of economic activity. The Company's operations were impacted in the month of
March 2020, due to shutdown of all plants following nationwide lockdown by the Government of
India in view of COVID-19.

The Government of India permitted certain additional activities from April 20, 2020 in non-
containment zones, subject to requisite approvals as may be required. The Company could secure
the requisite approvals and has accordingly commenced operations and is gradually ramping up
capacity since then.

In assessing the recoverability of carrying amounts of Company’s assets such as Investments,
loans / advances (net of impairment loss / loss allowance), trade receivables, inventories etc., the
Company has considered various internal and external information up to the date of approval of
these financial statements and concluded that they are recoverable based on the estimate of
values of the businesses and assets based on the cash flow projections. In making the said
projections, reliance has been placed on estimates of future prices of Hot rolled Coils, Zinc & Alloys
and assumptions relating to operational performance including significant improvementin capacity
utilisation and margins based on forecasts of demand in local/ overseas markets. We have also
considered the current indicators of future economic conditions.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions

b. Critical accounting judgements

i) Government receivables

Receivables from Government Authorities are on account of Maharashtra Value Added Tax
refund, GST refund and Export Benefits due to the company. On the basis of detailed
evaluation, the Company has estimated amount of Rs. 36.71 crores (Export benefits and
entitlements) and Rs. 180.87 crores (Indirect Tax balances) to be realized within next 12
months, accordingly same has been classified as “Current Assets”.

ii) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company
as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain
not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 4 — Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rupees in crore)

Total Property,

) Land- } : . "
Particulars and s Buildings Re-nl.wa y Pla_nt Il i Vehicles Qﬁnce Computers Plant and G LR
Leasehold Freehold Siding equipments  and Equipments . sale
; Equipment
Fixtures
Cost or valuation
At April 1, 2018 255.52 280.82 299.61 35.88 1,237.93 2.00 5.47 294 594 2,126.11 3.02
Additions 505 46.94 76.68 - 610.38 0.46 0}.49 0.75 0.40 74115 -
Disposals - - (1.63) - (31.02) - (1.04) - (0.02) (33.71) (2.42)
Transfer to asset held for sale - - (0.86) - (9.53) - - - - (10.39) 10.39
At March 31, 2019 260.57 327.76 373.80 35.88 1,807.76 2.46 4.92 3.69 6.32 2,823.16 10.99
Additions - 3.39 13.64 - 93.57 0.16 0.18 0.41 0.69 112.04 699
Disposals - (1.62) - (16.73) (0.00) (0.58) (0.01) (0.13) (19.07) (15.85)
Transfer to asset held for sale - - - - (7.35) - - - - (7.35) -
Transfer to Right-of-use Asset (Refer Note 37) (260.57) - - - - - - - - (260.57) -
At March 31, 2020 - 331.15 385.82 35.88 1,877.25 2.62 4.52 4.09 6.88 2,648.21 213
Depreciation
At April 1, 2018 11.00 - 37.52 5.65 340.57 0.71 1.03 1.37 3.51 401.36 -
Charge for the year 3.70 - 14.43 1.80 109.03 0.30 0.70 0.40 1.68 132,04 -
Disposals - - (1.15) = (23.13) - (0.42) - (0.02) (24.73) -
Transfer to asset held for sale - - (0.15) - (4.71) - - - - (4.85) 4.85
At March 31, 2019 14.70 - 50.65 7.45 421.76 1.01 1.31 1.77 5.17 503.82 4.85
Charge for the year - - 15.91 1.80 133.05 0.31 0.61 0.49 0.69 152.86 -
Disposals (0.35) - (14.90) (0.00) (0.29) (0.01) (0.13) (15.68) (5.05)
Transfer to asset held for sale . s
Transfer to Right-of-use Asset (Refer Note 37) (14.70) (14.70)
At March 31, 2020 - - 66.21 9.25 539.91 1.32 1.63 2.25 5.73 626.30 (0.20)
Net Block
At March 31, 2020 - 331.15 319.61 26.63 1,337.34 1.30 2.89 1.84 1.15 2,021.91 2.33
,@ﬁ March 31, 2019 245.87 327.76 323.15 28.43 1,386.00 1.45 3.61 1.92 1.15 2,319.34 6.14
{‘h Y " '?(\
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

a) Non-current asset held for sale includes Hot Rolling Mill Crane, Acid Regeneration Plant and Effluent Treatment Plant which is retired from active use. The
Company intends to dispose the same within the next 12 months by way of sale. The assets were already valued at their residual value, and hence there is
no charge in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020.

b) For details of assets given on Operating Lease - Refer note 37 (a)

c) Freehold land includes land transferred to the Company by virtue of composite scheme of amalgamation and arrangement which are in process of being
registered in the name of the company amounting to Rs. 0.05 crores. (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 4.85 crores)

d) Capital work in progress includes exchange fluctuation loss of Rs. 55.18 crores (March 31, 2019 - Gain of Rs 2.57 crores) and borrowing cost Rs. 61.73
crores (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 15.25 crores) capitalised during the year.

e) Borrowing cost and foreign exchange loss capitalized during the year is Rs. Nil crores (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 26.09 crores) and Rs. Nil crores respectively
(March 31, 2019 — Rs. 22.83 crores)

f) The property, plant and equipment are pledged against borrowings, the details relating to which have been described in Note 15.




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 5 - Intangible Assets

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars

Computer Software

Total

Cost or valuation

At April 1, 2018 12.76 12.76
Additions 0.06 0.06
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2019 12.82 12.82
Additions - B
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2020 12.82 12.82
Amortization

At April 1, 2018 7.40 7.40
Charge for the year 1.75 1.75
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2019 9.15 9.15
Charge for the year 1.76 1.76
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2020 10.91 10.91
Net book value

At March 31, 2020 1.91 1.91
At March 31, 2019 3.67 3.67




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 6 — Investment in Subsidiaries

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Hasaud Steel Limited
218,060 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Equity Shares of Rs 10 0.22 -
each fully paid-up
Total Investment in Subsidiaries 0.22 =
Unquoted
0.22 -

Aggregate carrying Value

Note 7 — Financial Assets

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Investments
Investments in equity instruments
Quoted — Others
(at fair value through OCI)
JSW Energy Limited
90,31,770 (March 31, 2019: 90,31,770) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 38.57 65.57
fully paid-up
Unquoted equity shares
Tarapur Environment Protection Society
244,885 (March 31, 2019 : 244,885) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully 4.04 4.36
paid-up
Total fair value through OC! investments 42.61 69.93
Current = .
Non-Current 42.61 69.93
Summary
Quoted
Aggregate carrying value 38.57 65.57
Aggregate market value 38.57 65.57
Unquoted
Aggregate carrying value 4.04 4.36
Derivative instruments at fair value through OCIi
Cash Filow Hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts - 41.37

Commodity contracts 0.16 -
Total derivative instruments at fair value through OCI 0.16 41.37
Current 0.16 41.37

Non-Current

Ty ACC



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 7 - Financial Assets (contd...)
{(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Derivative instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss
Derivatives not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts _ 7.50 0.07
Total derivative instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss 7.50 0.07
Current 7.50 0.07

Non-Current - _

Deposits (considered good unless otherwise stated)

Security Deposits 12.31 12.96
Total Deposits 12.31 12.96
Current 0.23 0.23
Non-Current 12.08 12.73

Loans (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Loans to related party for business purpose 4.20 5.36
4.20 5.36

Current 1.02 1.15
Non-Current 3.18 4.21

Other Financial Assets

Export benefits and entitlements (refer note 37 b) 60.68 69.14
Claim receivable 66.70 17.85
Others 12.22 1.62

139.60 88.61
Less: Provision for Doubtful receivables (11.70) (0.08)
Other Financial Assets 127.90 88.53
Current 26.67 46.94
Non-Current 101.23 41.59
Total Financial Assets 194.68 218.22
Total Current 35.58 89.76
Total Non-Current 159.10 128.46

Investments at fair value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in quoted and unquoted equity securities.

Derivative instruments at fair value through OCI reflect the positive change in fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts, designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable forecast sales in US dollars (USD).

Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fair value of those
foreign exchange forward contracts that are not designated in hedge relationships.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 7 — Financial Assets (contd...)

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
Loans 4.20 5.36
Trade receivables (note 10) 433.80 340.76
Cash and cash equivalents (note 11) 350.04 78.30
Security deposits 12.31 12.96
Other financial assets 127.90 88.53
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 928.25 525.91

Note 8 — Other non-current assets

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
Capital advances 33.32 66.80
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (0.52) (0.52)
32.80 66.28
Indirect tax balances/recoverables/credits 34.75 38.37
Prepayments and others 0.62 1.31
35.37 39.68
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances (0.14) (0.14)
35.23 39.54
Total other non-current assets 68.03 105.82

Note 9 — Inventories

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Raw Materials (at cost) 471.08 443.54
Semi Finished/ Finished Goods (Refer note 24) (at cost or net realisable 936.14 778.09
value)
Production Consumables and Stores and Spares (including packing 47.54 46.71
material) (at cost)
Traded Goods (at cost or net realisable value) 80.46 19.14
Total inventories 1,5635.22 1,287.48
Details of stock-in-transit included in above
Raw Materials 151.50 141.37
i) Inventory amounting to Rs. 361.25 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 292.38 crores) was valued at Fair
value less cost to sell.
i) During the year Rs. 20.74 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 6.72 crores) was recognised as an expense
for inventories carried at net realisable value in respect of inventory given in (i) above.
iii) Inventories have been pledged as security against certain bank borrowings, details relating to which

has been descnbed\in note 15.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 10 — Trade receivables

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Trade receivables 390.80 320.28
Receivables from other related parties 43.00 20.48
(refer note 40) )
Total Trade receivables 433.80 340.76

Break-up for security details

Trade receivables

Secured considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 433.80 340.76
Trade receivable which have significant - -
increase in credit risk

Trade receivables credit impaired 0.75 0.75

434.55 341.51

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Unsecured, considered good - =
Trade receivable which have significant - -
increase in credit risk

Trade receivables credit impaired ) (0.75) (0.75)
Total Trade receivables 433.80 340.76

Trade receivables have been given as collateral towards borrowings details relating to which has been
described in note 15.

Ageing of Trade receivables that are past due (Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March March 31,
31, 2020 2019

60-90 days 0.11 0.26
90-180 days 0.56 2.39
> 180 days 295 274

3.61 5.39

The credit period on sale of goods ranges from 7 to 60 days with or without security.

Note 11 — Cash and cash equivalents

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Balances with Banks
In Current accounts 106.14 4.67
In Term Deposit accounts with maturity less than 3 months 243.83 73.56
at inception
Cash on hand 0.07 0.06
350.04 78.29
Others
In Margin Money with maturity more than 3 months but - 0.01

less than 12 months at inception

Total cash and cash equivalents 350.04 78.30
Earmarked balances T
i Z G5 CoX b - .
In Margin Money G’?“ 2 __(_)(\.\: Ti'\. 0.01
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 11 - Cash and cash equivalent (continued)

Margin money deposits with a carrying amount of Rs. Nil crore (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 0.01 crore) are subject
to first charge to secure the Company's cash credit loans.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars April 1, 2019 Cash Flows Foreign Other March 31, 2020
exchange

management
Non-current Borrowings 1,281.64 938.67 93.98 5.29 2,319.58
Lease Liabilities 22.01 (3.56) - 2.02 20.47
Current maturity of long 97.95 362 : § 101-57
term loans
Interest Payable 5.06 (206.27) - 206.64 5.43
RN T T T 1,406.66 732.46 93.98 |  213.95 2,447.05
financing activities

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars April 1, 2018 Cash Flows Foreign Other March 31, 2019
exchange
_ management

Non-current Borrowings 855.64 403.13 11.51 11.36 1,281.64
Current maturity of long 87.89 (0.58) - 10.64 97.95
term loans

Interest Payable 4.86 (174.44) E 174.64 5.06
Total liabilities from 948.39 228.11 11.51 196.64 1,384.65

financing activities

The 'Other’ adjustment includes interest cost capitalised in Property, plant and equipment, interest accrued on
borrowings & finance lease and amortisation of upfront fees.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 106.14 4.67
In Term Deposit Accounts with maturity less than 3 months at 243.83 73.56
inception
Cash on hand 0.07 0.06
in Margin Money with maturity more than 3 months but less B 0.01
than 12 months at inception
350.04 78.30




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 12 — Other current assets

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
Advance to Suppliers (Refer Note no 40) 237.97 30.17
Indirect tax balances/recoverables/credits 182.47 251.53
Prepayments and others 19.82 29.83
440.26 311.53
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances (20.00) (20.00)
Total other current assets 420.26 291.53

Note 13 - Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number of shares Amount (Rupees in crores)
a. Authorised shares:
Equity Shares of the par value of Rs.10 1,00,50,00,000 5,50,00,000 1,005.00 55.00
each

b. Issued and subscribed

(i) Outstanding at the beginning of the 5,00,50,000 5,00,50,000 50.05 50.05
year, fully paid-up

(i) Issued during the year (at par value)  75,00,00,000 - 750.00 - -

(iii) Outstanding at the end of the year, 80,00,50,000 5,00,50,000 800.05 50.05
fully paid-up

a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event
of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

b) Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
No of shares % of shares No of % of
B shares shares
Equity shares
JSW Steel Limited (including nominees) 80,00,50,000 100.00% 5,00,50,000 100.00%

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration
received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares.

The Company has not declared any dividend during the current year (March 31, 2019 - Nil).
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 14 - Other equity :
Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
General reserve 2.47 2.47
Retained Earnings 780.60 490.07
Other Comprehensive Income ;
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income (45.32) (17.99)
Effective portion of cash flow hedges (41.25) 23.81
Other Reserves
Capital reserve 1,263.49 1,263.49
Total 1,959.99 1,761.85

(i) General reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net
income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to
ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10.00% of the paid-up capital of the Company for
that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable reserves for that year.

Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified
percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn and the Company can optionally transfer any
amount from the surplus of profit or loss to the General reserves.

(ii) Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings includes re-measurement loss / (gain) on
defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained earnings
is a free reserve available to the Company.

(iii) Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investment in equity instrument in other
comprehensive income. This amount will be reclassified to retained earnings on derecognition of equity instrument.

(iv) Effective portion of cash flow hedges

Effective portion of cash flow hedges represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on
changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges, which shall be reclassified to profit
or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item, consistent with the Company’s accounting policies.

(v) Equity settled share based payment

The Holding Company has share option schemes under which the option to subscribe for Holding Company’s
shares have been granted to certain senior employees. The share based payment reserve at Holding Company is
used to recognise the value of equity settled share based payments provided to employees, including key
management personnel, as a part of their remuneration.

(vi) Capital reserve

The Honourable High Court of Mumbai, on May 3, 2013 had sanctioned a scheme of amalgamation ("Scheme”)
under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956. In accordance with the scheme, Downstream Undertakings
comprising of Vasind and Tarapur units of JSW Steel Limited and Kalmeshwar Unit of JSW Ispat Steel Limited
were transferred to JSW Steel Coated Products Limited with effect from July 1, 2012 and accounted in the year

_ended March 31, 2014,
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company had accounted all the assets and liabilities of Kalmeshwar Undertaking and Downstream
Undertakings at the appointed date of July 1, 2012 at the respective fair values and had credited an amount equal
to the difference in fair values of assets and liabilities of Kalmeshwar Undertaking and Downstream Undertakings

to its Capital Reserve account.

Note 15 — Borrowings

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Maturity
Non-current Borrowings
Term Loan
From Bank
a. Secured bank loan October 31, 2015 to October 31, 2023 876.08 455.88
November 30, 2021 to August 31, 2022
b. i) Unsecured Foreign March 28, 2023 to January 29, 2026 1,116.05 713.97
Currency Loan (ECB)
i) Unsecured Foreign June 2020 to December 2029 169.63 102.47
Currency Loan (ECA)
¢. Acceptances for Capital Projects with
maturity more than one year
i) Secured November 2022 23.39 -
ii) Unsecured January 2022 to October 2022 126.68 -
From other parties
Loans (Unsecured)
d. Sales Tax Loan from September 2016 - July 2031 7.75 9.32
Government of Maharashtra
Total non-current borrowings 2,319.58 1,281.64
Maturity
Current borrowings
Current maturity of long term loans
From Bank
a. Secured bank loan October 31, 2015 to October 31, 2023 79.68 95.64
b. Unsecured Foreign Currency Loan June 2020 to December 2029 20.32 -
(ECA)
From other parties
Deferred Payment Liabilities (Unsecured)
¢. Deferred Sales Tax/ Value April 2015 - June 2019 - 0.74
Added Tax
Loans (Unsecured)
d. Sales Tax Loan from September 2016 - July 2031 1.57 1.657
Government of Maharashtra
Loan Repayable on Demand
(from bank)
e. Working Capital loans (Secured) On demand 300.89 2.20
Total current borrowings 402.46 100.15
Less: Amount Classified under "other current financial liabilities" (101.57) (97.95)
Net current borrowings 300.89 2.20

1)




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

a. Secured Bank Loan

Weighted Average interest rate of Secured Loans as on March 31, 2020 is 9.15%
Rupee Term Loans from Banks are secured as under:
A) Rupee Term Loan of Rs. 850 crores from State Bank of India is secured by

i) First charge by way of legal mortgage on 2400 sq. feet land at Toranagallu village in the state of Karnataka.

iy First pari-passu charge on the entire fixed assets of the Company situated at Vasind, Tarapur and
Kalmeshwar both present and future.

JSW Steel Ltd. (Holding Company) has provided a Letter of Comfort (LOC) in favour of the Bank for the Term
Loan sanctioned and disbursed in favour of the Company.

Terms of Repayment of Rupee Term Loan

(i) Rs. 297.50 crores was repayable in 14 quarterly instalments of Rs. 21.25 crores each from 31.10.2015 to
31.01.2019.

(i) Rs. 95.64 crores was repayable in 4 quarterly instalments of Rs. 23.91 crores each from 30.04.2019 to
31.01.2020.

(i) Rs. 318.74 crores is repayable in 12 quarterly instalments of Rs. 26.56 crores each from 31.07.2020 to
30.04.2023.

(iv) Rs. 138.12 crores is repayable in 2 quarterly instalments of Rs. 69.06 crores each from 31.07.2023 to
31.10.2023.

Pursuant to the Covid 19 pandemic, the Reserve Bank of India, vide its notification reference RBI1/2019-20/186
dated 27 March 2020, announced a "Covid 19 Regulatory Package" to mitigate the adverse impact of the
pandemic and ensure continuity of viable businesses. As per this package banks were inter alia permitted to
grant a moratorium of three months on payment of all instalments (principal and interest) on Term loans falling
due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020. The Company opted to avail the package relating to term loans
and the same was approved by the lenders in line with RBI's notification. Accordingly, the financial statement
has been prepared giving effect to the above.

B) Rupee Term Loan of Rs.500.00 crores from Deutsche Bank is to be secured by first pari-passu charge on
the entire fixed assets of the Company situated at Vasind, Tarapur and Kalmeshwar both present and future.

Terms of Repayment of Rupee Term Loan (Deutsche Bank)

Total amount to be repaid in 4 equal quarterly instalments starting from 27th month of each draw down.

b. Foreign Currency Loan

Weighted Average interest rate of Foreign Currency Loans as on March 31, 2020 is 3.62%
Foreign Currency Loan from Banks are as under:

(i) Foreign currency Unsecured External Commercial Borrowings loan of USD 150 million from Yes Bank
repayable in equal instalments at the end of 60 months, 72 months and 84 months for each tranche as under:

- USD 1.67 million in FY 2022-23
- USD 35 million in FY 2023-24

- USD 50 million in FY 2024-25

- USD 48.33 million in FY 2025-26
- USD 15 million in FY 2026-27
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(i) Foreign currency Unsecured Export Credit Agencies Borrowings (Tranche A) of USD 14.22 million from KFW
IPEX-Bank GmbH repayable from June 2020 to December 2029 in 20 equal half-yearly instaliments.

(iii) Foreign currency Unsecured Export Credit Agencies Borrowings (Tranche B) of USD 12.74 million from KFW
IPEX-Bank GmbH repayable from June 2020 to December 2029 in 20 equal half-yearly installments.

c. Deferred Payment Liabilities (Unsecured)

Deferred Sales Tax Loan is interest free and payable in five equal annual instalments after end of 10 years of
respective year of collection and the repayment schedule from the Balance Sheet date is as follows:

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Instalments due Number of | Non-Current Current Number of | Non-Current Current
instalments (Rs. in Maturities instalments (Rs. in Maturities
crores) (Rs. in crores) (Rs. in
crores) crores)
Within one year . - - 2 - 0.74
In the second year - - - - - -
to third year
In the fourth year - - - - B -
to fifth year
Total - - - 2 - 0.74

d. Sales Tax Loan from Government of Maharashtra

Sales tax loan from Government of Maharashtra is interest free and payable in six equal annual instalments starting

after 12 years of disbursement and the repayment schedule from the balance sheet date is as follows:

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Instalments due Number of | Non-Current Current Number of | Non-Current Current
instalments (Rs. in Maturities instalments (Rs. in Maturities
crores) (Rs. in crores) (Rs. in
crores) crores)
Within one year 7 B 1.57 7 - 1.57
In the second year 9 1.80 - 14 3.14 -
to third year
In the fourth year 2 0.05 - 4 0.27 -
to fifth year
After five years 48 5.91 - 48 5.91 -
Total 66 7.75 1.57 73 9.32 1.57

e. Working Capital loans (secured)

Above Working Capital Loans are secured by:

- pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of Stocks of Raw Materials, Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress,
Consumable Stores and Spares and Book Debts / Receivables of the Company, both present and future.

- pari passu second charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the Fixed/Blocked
assets of the company, both present and future except such properties as may be specifically excluded.

The working capital loan is repayable on demand and carries interest at 8.90 % to 9.25 % per annum (March 31,
2019 - 9.00 % to 9.50 per annum).
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 16 — Other Current Financial Liabilities

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Financial liabilities at fair value through OCI

Cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts 55.43 -
Commodity contracts 5.38 -
Total financial liabilities at fair value through OCI 60.81 -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated as hedges
Foreign exchange forward contracts 0.61 7.89

Total derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.61 7.89

Other current financial liabilities at amortised cost

Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 15) 101.57 97.95
Deposits received from customers 14.53 10.55
Payables to employees 21.21 16.63
Interest payable 543 5.06
Customer liabilities (rebate & discount) 38.17 26.07
Payables for capital projects:

Acceptances 176.39 79.86
Other than acceptances 431.35 185.20
Others 0.35 0.35
Total other current financial liabilities at amortised cost 789.00 421.67
Total other current financial liabilities 850.42 429.56

Payables for Capital Projects comprise of credit availed by the Company from Banks for payment to suppliers
for capital items amounting to Rs. 176.39 crores (March 31, 2019- Rs. 79.86 crores). These arrangements are
interest bearing and are payable within one year. (Refer Note 2 (XVIII) (1) — Accounting policy on trade payables
and other financial liabilities).

Financial liabilities at fair value through OCI

Financial liabilities at fair value through OClI reflect the change in fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts,
designated as cash flow hedges to hedge highly probable future sales in USD.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The Company has entered into other foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention of reducing the
foreign exchange risk of expected sales. These other contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
Borrowings (non-current) (note 15) 2,319.58 1,281.64
Borrowings (current) (note 15) 300.89 2.20
Current maturity of long term loans (note 16) 101.57 97.95
Trade payables (note 18) 958.63 1,533.98
'.:'--,"I—Tbigh_fjnancial liabilities carried at amortised cost : 3,680.67  2,915.77
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 17 — Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2020 is:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Profit or loss section

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 95.66 30.06

Tax provision / (reversal) for earlier years (0.21) 3.80

Deferred tax:

Reversal of DTL due to change on measurement due to (89.71)

change in tax rates (refer note below)

Short/ (Excess) provision for Deferred tax relating to previous year 0.21 (5.30)

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary-differences (25.64) 12.26

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss (19.69) 40.82

Other Comprehensive Income Section

Deferred tax related to items recognised in Other Comprehensive

Income during the year:

Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of cash flow hedges (26.66) 14.11

Net (loss)/ gain on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.71) (1.48)

Income tax charged to Other Comprehensive Income (27.37) 12.63

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31,

2020:
(Rupees in crores)
Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Accounting profit before income tax 27617 120.45
Enacted tax rate in India 25.168% 34.944%
Expected income tax (benefit)/expense at statutory tax 69.51 42.09
rate
Expenses disallowed for tax purposes 1.84 2.67
Income exempt from tax (1.33) (0.74)
Reversal of DTL due to change on measurement due to (89.71) -
change in tax rates
Reversal of Deferred Tax liabilities on Leasehold & Freehold land - (1.70)
Adjustment due to prior period items - (1.50)
At the effective income tax rate of 25.35% (March 31, 2019- 33.89%) (19.69) 40.82
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (19.69) 40.82




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax relates to the following: Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and
Loss
(Rupees in crores) (Rupees in crores)
Particulars As at As at For the For the

year year

ended ended
March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

- 2020 2019 2020 2019
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 10.18 7.25 2.92 (6.98)
Post-employment benefits 25.85 23.46 2.38 (1.38)
Impact of expenditure charged to the Statement of 17.30 17.30 - (2.94)

Profit and Loss in the current year but allowed for tax
purposes on payment basis

Revaluation of Cash Flow Hedges 10.30 (12.79) - -
Property, plant and equipment (253.47) (367.86) 113.69 23.10
Others (0.88) (0.81) (0.07) 0.81
Adjustment due to prior period items = - (3.58) (5.65)
Deferred tax expense/ (income) 115.35 6.96
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (190.72) (333.45)
Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net):

Particulars Rupees

in crores

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Opening balance as on April 1, 2018 (313.85)
Tax income/ (expense) recognised in profit or loss (6.97)
Tax income/ (expense) recognised in OCI (12.63)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2019 (333.45)
Tax income/ (expense) recognised in profit or loss 115.35
Tax income/ (expense) recognised in OCI 27.38
Closing balance as on March 31, 2020 (190.72)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2019 (333.45)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2020 (190.72)

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority.

Pursuant to the Taxation Law (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 issued by Ministry of Law and Justice (Legislative
Department) on September 20, 2019 which is effective from April 01, 2019, the corporate income tax rate has
been reduced to 22% plus applicable surcharge and cess resulting into a reversal of deferred tax liabilities
recognised up to March 31, 2019 amounting to Rs. 89.71 crores. The reversal has been recognised in the
deferred tax expense item during the year ended March 31, 2020
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 18 — Trade payables

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Acceptances 333.71 402.14
Other than acceptances 624.92 1,131.84
Total Trade payables 958.63 1,533.98
Break-up of Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer 7.69 5.19
note 32)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 950.94 1,528.79

small enterprises

Total Trade payables 958.63 1,533.98

Acceptances include credit availed by the Company from banks for payment to suppliers for purchase of raw
materials and other services amounting to Rs. 66.88 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs 59.54 crores). These
arrangements are interest bearing and are payable within one year (Refer Note 2 (XVIII)(1l) - accounting policy
on trade payables and other financial liabilities and Note 40 — Related Party Disclosures)

Note 19 — Other current liabilities

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
Advances from Customers 115.34 158.64
Statutory Liabilities 18.27 19.55
Others (refer below note) 54.18 28.89
Total other current liabilities 187.79 207.08

Export obligation deferred income represents government assistance in the form of the duty benefit availed
under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme on purchase of property, plant and equipment
accounted for as government grant and accounted in revenue on fulfilment of export obligation. (refer note 37¢)

Note 20 — Provisions

Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Long Term Short Term
Provision for compensated absenses - - 23.61 20.46
Provision for Gratuity - - 55.55 46.69
Provision for long service award 1.51 1.63 1.75 1.44
Total provisions 1.51 1.63 80.91 68.59
o
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 21 — Revenue from operations

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

Domestic Turnover (includes Freight Recovery Rs. 264.55 crores, 8,264.30 8,565.32
March 31, 2019- Rs. 275.36 crores)

Export Turnover 2,656.84 3,451.79
Traded Goods ) 636.65 156.50

11,557.79  12,173.61
Sale of services

Jobwork income 2.84 2.84
“~~Other Operating Revehues

Gain on prepayment of deferred Value Added/ Sales Tax 1.39 2.11

Government Grant 3.30 5.41

Export Benefits 97.42 128.93

Miscellaneous Income 12.54 10.94

Total revenue from operations 11,675.28 12,323.84

Government Grants have been recognised on account of duty exemption on imports of permitted goods under
Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme with an export obligation to be met in future periods.

Note 22 — Other income

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Other non-operating income
Dividend income from long-term Investments 0.90 -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.32
Insurance Claim on Fixed Assets 6.35 -
Interest income from:
Related party (refer note 40) 18.75 0.73
Others 6.19 1.54
Total other income 3219 2.59
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 23 — Cost of materials consumed

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Inventory at the beginning of the year 443.54 486.68
Add: Purchases 8,852.71 0,963.54
9,296.25 10,450.22
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 471.08 443.54
Total cost of materials consumed 8,825.17 10,006.68

Note 24 — Changes in inventories of finished goods and semi-finished goods

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Opening Stock :
Semi-Finished /Finished Goods 797.24 761.21
797.24 761.21
Closing Stock :
Semi-Fjnished /Finished Goods 1,016.60 797.24
1,016.60 797.24
Total Changes in inventories of finished goods and semi-finished goods (219.36) (36.03)

Note 25 — Employee benefits expense

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Salaries and Wages 242.09 225.53
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 17.91 16.72
Expenses on employees stock option scheme of the Parent company 0.64 3.18
(refer note 36)
Staff welfare expenses 13.89 11.28
Total employee benefits expense 274.53 256.71




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note 26 — Depreciation and amortization expense

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 4) 163.23 132.04
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 37a) 6.26 =
Amortization of intangible assets (note 5) 1.76 1.75
Total depreciation and amortization expense 161.25 133.79

Note 27 — Finance costs

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Interest 133.47 126.88
Other borrowing costs 11.07 14.08
Total Finance costs 144.54 140.96

Note 28 — Other Expenses

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Stores and Spares consumed 124.95 14516
Packing Expenses 146.45 128.36
Power and Fuel 408.15 402.34
Jobwork and Processing Charges 54.48 68.22
Rent 0.11 3.10
Repairs and Maintenance
Plant and Machinery 23.20 17.62
Buildings 6.77 8.33
Others 0.54 2.36
Carriage and Freight 496.68 512.36
Commission on Sales 18.40 22.21
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.83 -
Net Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation 70.14 11.87
(Other than considered as finance cost)
Provision for Doubtful advances / receivables 11.62 20.00
Insurance 9.92 7.53
Rates and Taxes 6.78 474
Expense towards CSR activities 6.16 6.13
Miscellaneous Expenses 198.64 174.36
1,583.82 1,5634.69

~=Total other expenses
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rupees in crores)

Details of CSR Expenditure: For the For the
Year Year
Ended Ended
March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 6.12 5.92
b) Amount spent during the year on
i) Construction/ acquisition of an asset
-in cash - -
-yet to be paid in cash - -
Total - B
i}y On purposes other than (i) above
- in cash 5.18 2.83
-yet to be paid in cash 0.98 3.30
Total 6.16 6.13




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note - 29 Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Company has assessed and determined the following categories for disaggregation of revenue in addition to

that provided under segment disclosure (refer note 35)

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from contracts with customer - sale of products * 11,557.79 12,173.61
Other operating revenue 117.49 150.23
Total revenue from operations 11,675.28 12,323.84
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time 11,675.28 12,323.84
Over a period of time - =
Total revenue from operations 11,675.28 12,323.84

* Includes Freight Recovered Rs. 264.55 crores, March 31, 2019- Rs. 275.36 crores)

Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers for sale of products

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Galvanized coils/sheets 3,604.49 4,585.08
Galvalume coils/sheets 1,651.38 1,980.77
Color Coated Galvanized coils/sheets 779.32 855.01
Color Coated Galvalume coils/sheets 3,569.62 3,622.34
Cold rolled coils/sheets 203.67 176.86
Hot rolled Coil Pickled & Oiled 29.93 17.83
Tinplate 433.26 -
Trading Sales 636.30 161.13
Others 649.82 774.59
Total 11,557.79 12,173.61

The Company recognizes revenue when control over the promised goods or services is transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

The Company has assessed the impact of COVID-19 on its revenue stream due to disruption in supply chain, drop
in demand, termination or deferment of contracts by customers etc. and have recognized revenue only when the
control over the goods or services is transferred to the customer

The Company sales to customers was affected in the last week of March 2020 as measures taken to contain the
spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closures of non-essential services
have triggered significant disruptions to businesses in India, resulting in an economic slowdown.

Contract Balances

(Rupees in crores)
As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2020

Particulars

Contract assets

Trade Receivables 433.80 340.76
Contract liabilities
_—Advance from customers 1156.34 158.64
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

As at March 31, 2020, Rs. 0.75 crore (March 31, 2019 - Rs.0.75 crore) was recognised as provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract liabilities include short term advances received for sale of goods.

Amount of revenue recognized from amounts included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the year Rs.
150.91 crores (March 31, 2019 Rs. 81.09 crores) and performance obligations satisfied in the previous years is Rs.
Nil (March 31, 2019 - Rs. Nil)

Out of the total contract liabilities outstanding as on March 31, 2020, Rs. 115.34 crores will be recognized by March
2021.

Refund Liabilities
{(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Arising from volume rebates and discounts 38.17 26.07

The Company does not have any significant adjustments between the contracted price and revenue recognized in
the statement of profit or loss. All the performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods and payment
is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.

Note — 30 Research and development activities

The Company has a separate In-House Research & Development (R&D) Centre involved in developmental
activities for new products, processes etc. The In-House R&D Centre is recognised by The Department of
Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR) vide letter No. TU/IV-RD/1424/2019 dated May 01, 2019. The R&D
expenditure (Capital and Revenue) has been reflected in the financial statements:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Capital Expenditure = -
Revenue Expenditure ** 3.63 3.81
Total 3.63 3.81

**Revenue expenditure comprises of cost to R&D eémployees Rs. 3.06 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 3.26 crores)
and other related expenses Rs. 0.57 crore (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 0.55 crore)

Note — 31 Payment to auditors

(Rupees in crores)

P
,E l\.’id”@;- ) ]
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Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
As auditor :
Audit Fees (including limited reviews) 0.79 0.75
Tax Audit Fees 0.12 0.09
In other capacity :
Other services 0.64 0.45
Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 0.04
Total 1.58 1.33
_~{Above.amount is excluding Goods and Services Tax)
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note — 32 Disclosure pertaining to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (as per information available
with the Company) under the MSMED Act, 2006

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Principal amount outstanding as at end of year 7.69 5.19
Interest due on above and unpaid as at end of - -
year

Interest paid to the supplier - -
Payments made to the supplier beyond the -

appointed day during the period B
Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at - -
end of period

Amount of further interest remaining due and - -
payable in succeeding year

Note 33 — Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit attributable to equity shareholders Rs. In crores 295.86 79.63
Weighted average number of Equity shares Nos. 56,84,92,623 5,00,50,000
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted Rs. / share 5.20 15.91

Note 34 — Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. Under these
plans, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs.

Company's contribution to provident fund & family pension scheme recognized in statement of profit and loss of
Rs 9.33 crores (March 31, 2019 Rs 8.70 crores) (included in note 25).

Contribution towards Company owned trust is detailed in Defined benefit plans.

b) Defined benefit plans

The Company operates defined benefit plans, viz., gratuity for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled
to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at
retirement age.

Under the Gratuity plan, the eligible employees are entitled to post-retirement benefit at the rate of 15 days
salary for each year of service until the retirement age of 58 or 60, without any payment ceiling. The vesting
period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years.

The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, who are responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for defining the investment strategy.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk,

longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount
rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will
create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix
of investments in government securities and other debt instruments.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will
be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to
the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-
insured by an external insurance company.

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried out at March 31, 2020 by Certified Actuarial valuer. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit

credit method.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity.

(Rupees in crores)

Net benefit expense March

31, 2020 For the Year For the Year

(recognised in the statement of profit or loss) Ended Ended

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Current service cost

Net Interest cost

Actual return on plan assets
Net benefit expense

Balance sheet

Benefit asset/ liability

2.84 2.59
5.33 4.48
(1.81) (1.41)
6.36 5.66

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of defined benefit obligation (73.16) (66.39)
Fair value of plan assets 17.61 19.71
Plan Liability (55.55) (46.68)




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

(Rupees in crores)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Opening defined benefit obligation 66.39 59.36
Current service cost 2.84 2.59
Interest cost 5.01 4.64
Benefits paid (3.91) (3.87)
Remeasurement losses/(gains) in other comprehensive

income

Liability transferred in 0.03 -
Liability transferred out (0.36) (0.39)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation from changes in financial 289 111
assumptions ' '
Experience adjustments 0.27 2.95
Closing defined benefit obligation 73.16 66.39

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 55.55 crores (March 31, 2019 Rs. 46.68 crores) to its Gratuity Fund
during the next year.

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Opening fair value of plan assets 19.71 20.17
Expected return 1.49 1.58
Contributions by employer - 2.00
Benefits paid (3.91) (3.87)

Remeasurement losses/(gains) in other

comprehensive income

Return on plan assets 0.32 (0.17)
Closing fair value of plan assets 17.61 19.71

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

(Rupees in crores)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Investments quoted in active markets:
HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co. Limited

- Defensive Managed Fund 1.35 1.68
- Secure Managed Fund 13.30 15.18
BAJAJ Allianz Secured Fund 2.96 2.85

17.61 19.71

The fair values are determined are based on quoted market prices in active markets.

Each year an Asset-Liability-Matching study is performed in which the consequences of the strategic investment
policies are analysed in terms of risk-and-return profiles. Investment and contribution policies are integrated within
this study.

TV
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Concentration of Fund is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Government Securities 45.47% 35.46%
Debentures/ Bonds 43.02% 55.20%
Equity 4.84% 4.58%
Deposits, Money Market Securities 6.67% 4.76%
100.00% 100.00%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown
below:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Discount rate 6.84% 7.54%
Expected rate of return on assets 6.84% 7.54%
Future salary increases 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality

(2006-08) (2006-08)

Ultimate Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on
investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations after considering several applicable factors
such as the composition of plan assets, investment strategy, market scenario, etc.

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet
date for the estimated term of the obligation.

Experience adjustments:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Defined benefit obligation (73.16) (66.39) (59.36) (54.69) (51.85)
Plan assets 17.61 19.71 2017 16.84 16.06
Deficit (55.55) (46.68) (39.19) (37.85) (35.79)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 0.27 2.95 2.39 1.65 2.93

Experience adjustments on plan assets

SR




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as shown below:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current 73.16 66.39
Assumptions
Increase by Decrease by Increase by  Decrease by
1% 1% 1% 1%

Impact D_ue to Change in rate of (4.07) 453 (3.82) 495
Discounting
:mpact Due to Change in rate of Salary 453 (4.14) 498 (3.91)
ncrease
ITmpact Due to Change in rate of Employee 0.20 (0.22) 038 (0.41)

urnover

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period.

The following is the maturity analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation to be paid from the fund

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Within next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 8.83 B3
Between 2 and 5 years 26.66 26.58
Between 6 and 10 years 39.14 35.77
More than 10 years 43.69 47.36

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 11 years (March
31, 2019 - 11 years)

Note — 35 Operating Segments

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of value added steel products. The
Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company monitors and reviews the profitability of value added
steel products treating it as profit from Steel products business. Hence, the Company has identified one primary
business segment i.e., Value added steel products.

Information about geographical revenue and assets

(Rupees in crores)

For the Year Ended Revenue from operations Non- current operating assets
March 31, 2020

Within India 8,894.41 4,898.37
Qutside India 2,780.87 -
Total 11,675.28 4,898.37
March 31, 2019

Within India 8,852.88 3,5676.08
Outside India 3,470.96 -
Total 12,323.84 3,576.08

“,' ‘{‘__ -~ (’)‘:\ £y
O o\ . 3
9 N oy

L 2 MY

% ita Y &)

_“1{ MUMBAI | *.)

J % )




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note — 36 Employee share based payment plans
ESOP SCHEME 2016:

The Board of Directors of JSW Steel Limited (Holding Company) at its meeting held on 29th January, 2016,
formulated the JSWSL EMPLOYEES STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN 2016 (“ESOP Plan”). At the said meeting,
the Board authorized the ESOP Committee for the superintendence of the ESOP Plan.

The said scheme is for permanent employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in the grade of L16 (AVP)
and above including any director except to any employee who is a promoter or a director who either himself or
through relatives or through anybody directly or indirectly holds more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares
of the Company. The Employees Stock Ownership Plan is effective from 1st April, 2016.

1st Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016

The eligible employees can exercise the option from May 17, 2016 till March 31, 2019 (for 50% of grant) and
May 17, 2016 till March 31, 2020 (for remaining 50% of grant).

A total of 295,190 options for equity shares having face value of Re. 1 per share were granted to the eligible
employees of the Company.

The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant is determined by using Black Scholes model.

2nd Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016

The eligible employees can exercise the option from May 16, 2017 till March 31, 2020 (for 50% of grant) and May
16, 2017 till March 31, 2021 (for remaining 50% of grant)

A total of 212,178 options for equity shares having face value of Re. 1 per share were granted to the eligible
employees of the Company.

The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant is determined by using Black Scholes model.

3 Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016

The eligible employees can exercise the option from May 15, 2018 till March 31, 2021 (for 50% of grant) and May
15, 2018 till March 31, 2022 (for remaining 50% of grant)

A total of 156,000 options for equity shares having face value of Re. 1 per share were granted to the eligible
employees of the Company.

The Fair Value of option on the date of each grant is determined by using Black Scholes model.




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The details of the Share based payment plan are as follows:

Particulars Year ESOP 2016 ESOP 2016 ESOP 2016
15t Grant 2" Grant 3 Grant
(AVP & Above) (AVP & Above) (AVP & Above)
Date of grant May 17, 2016 May 16, 2017 May 15, 2018
Opening Balance as on April 1, 2019 2,40,750 1,83,840 1,36,310
April 1, 2018 2,83,950 2,13,839 -
Allotted March 31, 2020 - - -
March 31, 2019 - - 1,56,000
Transfer to JSW Steel March 31, 2020 - 11,752 8,329
March 31, 2019 43,200 29,999 19,690
Transfer from JSW Steel March 31, 2020 - - 9,770
March 31, 2019 - - -
Forfeited during the period March 31, 2020 - - -
March 31, 2019 - - -
Exgrmsed during the Marech-31, 2020 19,415 - -
period

March 31, 2019 - - -
Outstanding as on March 31, 2020 2,21,335 1,72,088 1,37,751
March 31, 2019 2,40,750 1,83,840 1,36,310
Exercisable as on March 31, 2020 - - -
March 31, 2019 - - -
Vesting Period March 31, 2020 17-May-16 till 16-May-17 till 15-May-18 till
31-Mar-19 (for 31-Mar-20 (for 31-Mar-21 (for
50% of grant) 50% of grant) 50% of grant)
and 17-May-16  and 16-May-17  and 15-May-18
till 31-Mar-20 till 31-Mar-21 till 31-Mar-22

(for remaining
50% of grant)

(for remaining
50% of grant)

March 31, 2019 17-May-16 till 16-May-17 till
31-Mar-19 (for 31-Mar-20 (for

50% of grant) 50% of grant)

and 17-May-16  and 16-May-17

till 31-Mar-20 till 31-Mar-21

(for remaining
50% of grant)

(for remaining
50% of grant)

(for remaining
50% of grant)

Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity
Exercise Price 103.65 161.36 263.24
Fair Value as on the Date 67.48 104.04 167.15

of Grant

Notes:

Note 1 - The company has recognised an expense of Rs. 0.64 crore (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 3.18 crores) towards
share based payments transactions based on charge received from holding company (i.e. JSW Steel Limited)
corresponding liability is recognised in the books of Holding company.

Note 2 - The share options outstanding at the end of the year has a weighted average exercise price of Rs.
103.65 for 1st Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016, Rs. 161.36 for 2nd Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016 and Rs.
263.24 for 3rd Grant under ESOP Scheme 2016 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of NIL days.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note — 37 Leases, Commitments and contingencies

a) Leases

i) As Lessor:

a) The Company has entered into Leave and License agreements, for renting 607 houses (admeasuring
approximately 367,363 square feet) at the rate of Rs. 2.30 per square feet per annum, for a period of 36 months.
The Company has received a rental income of Rs 1.01 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs 0.83 crore) during the year.

Disclosure in respect of assets (buildings) given on operating lease:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Gross Carrying amount of Assets 30.72 30.72
Accumulated Depreciation 4.53 3.14
Net Block 26.19 27.58
Depreciation for the year 1.39 0.85

Future minimum rentals receivable under this agreement are as under

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not later than one year J 1.01 -
Later than one year but not later than five years 1.01 -
Later than five years - -
Total 2.02 -

b) The Company has entered into Leave and License agreement for renting freehold Land admeasuring 22,303
sq. meter for a non-cancellable period of 25 years. The Gross Book Value of the land is Rs. 10.70 crores. The
Company has received a rental income of Rs 0.91 crore (March 31, 2019 - Rs 0.89 crore) during the year.

Future minimum rentals receivable under this agreement are as under

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Not later than one year 0.91 0.91
Later than one year but not later than five years 3.64 3.64
Later than five years 15.83 16.74
_Total 20.38 21.29

ii) As Lessee:

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on the date of initial application i.e. 01 April 2019. The Company has used the modified
retrospective approach for transitioning to Ind AS 116 with right-of-use asset recognized at an amount equal to
the lease liability. Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted.

The Company has entered into agreements for leasing of Plant & Machinery for business purpose. The lease
term ranges from 5 years to 15 years. The Company also has leasehold land situated in its Tarapur &
Kalmeshwar units which have been taken on a lease of 99 years.

N




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as
operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets were
recognised based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease
payments.

The above approach has resulted in a recognition of a right-of-use asset of Rs. 267.88 crores and a lease liability
of Rs. 22.01 crores on the date of initial apptication.

Most of the contracts that contains extension terms are on mutual agreement between both the parties and
hence the potential future rentals cannot be assessed. Certain contracts where the extension terms are unilateral
are with unrelated parties and hence there is no certainty about the extension being exercised.

The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application

Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the
date of-initial- application

Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application

Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period.

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Leasehold Plant & Right-of-use
Land Machinery asset
Balance as on 01-04-2019 245.87 22.01 267.88
Less: Depreciation for the year 3.75 2.51 6.26
Balance as on 31-03-2020 24212 19.50 261.62

Refer note 2 (V) - Accounting Policy on Leases for details of ROU Asset Valuation method.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Lease Liabilities
" Balance as on 01-04-2019 22.01
Add: Interest cost 2.02
Less: Lease principal and
interest payments Greld
Balance as on 31-03-2020 20.47
Current 1.87
Non-Current 18.60
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an
undiscounted basis:

(Rupees in crores)
Particulars <1 year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Lease Liabilities 3.72 17.05 8.94 29.71

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due. The effective interest rate for

lease liabilities is 9.5%

The Company has recognized Rs. 0.11 crore as rent expenses during the year which pertains to low value asset
which was not recognized as part of right of use asset.

The leases that the Company has entered with lessors are generally long term in nature and no changes in terms
of those leases are expected due to the COVID-19.

b} Contingent Liabilities

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts* 1.28 1.36
Disputed Claims/Levies (excluding interest, if any)
Excise Duty 1.15 1.21
Custom Duty 7.38 7.38
Service Tax 13.41 13.91
Sales Tax 68.39 70.32
Income Tax 24.51 -
Total 116.12 94.18

* The claims against the Company comprises of claims by suppliers, employees and other parties.

a) Inrespect of items shown above, future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of judgments pending
at various forums / authorities. The Company does not expect the outcome of matters stated above to have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial conditions, result of operations or cash flows.

b) Excise duty cases include disputes pertaining to applicability of excise duty on mill scale not generated out of
manufacturing activity, assessable value applicable in case of sale of defective goods after processing, inclusion
of sales tax deferral amount in assessable value, reversal of CENVAT credit on power injected to MSEDCL grid,

etc.

c) Customs duty cases include disputes pertaining to classification of imported steam coal, addition of
stevedoring, wharfage and other charges in assessable value.

d) Service tax cases include disputes pertaining to availment of CENVAT credit on Goods transport agency
services, CHA services and other export related services, applicability of service tax on lease of residential
colony, etc.

e) VAT/Sales tax cases include disputes pertaining to levy of differential tax for non-submission of concessional
forms, disallowance of set-off for non-submission of ledger confirmation by vendors, rate of tax on pre-painted

coils, etc.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

f) Income tax cases include disputes pertaining to transfer pricing.

g) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th
February, 2019. As a matter of caution, the company has assessed the impact on prospective basis and the
same is not material. The Company will evaluate the position on receiving further clarity on the subject.

h) There are two litigation cases (PY: four cases) for which the Company has made a provision in the books
aggregating Rs. 77.58 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 65.68 crores). The amount paid under protest is Rs. 30.50
crores (March 31, 2019 — Rs. 17.62 crores)

i) Non-Current Financial Assets includes Incremental Export Benefits receivable amounting to Rs. 23 Crores.
During the previous year, the Company had received favourable judgement of Bombay High Court for release
of refund. During the current year, DGFT has filed Special Leave Petition (SLP) with Honourable Supreme Court
(‘SC’) with respect to similar matter and the same has been admitted by the SC. The Company has made an
assessment of recoverability and is confident of securing refund of entire amount. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in the accompanying Ind AS financial statements. (refer note 7)

j) There are several other cases which has been determined as remote by the Company and hence not been
disclosed above.

c¢) Capital and Other Commitments

At March 31, 2020, estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for (net of advances) is Rs. 1,142.75 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 1,790.13 crores)

The Company has imported capital goods under the export promotion capital goods scheme to utilise the benefit
of a zero or concessional customs duty rate. These benefits are subject to future exports within the stipulated
year. Such export obligations at year end aggregate to Rs 1,412.72 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs 885.58 crores)

Note — 38 Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entity will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and
equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings).

The Company prepares projections via Annual Business plan and Capex Business plan to plan the capital
structure and the outflow. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The
management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. The Company monitors its capital using gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as Loans and borrowings
less cash and cash equivalent.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars

Long term borrowings

Current maturities of long term debt
Short term borrowings

Less: cash and cash equivalent
Net debt

Total equity

EBIDTA

Gearing ratio

Net debt / EBIDTA

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

2,319.58 1,281.64
101.57 97.95
300.89 2.20
(350.04) (78.30)
2,372.00 1,303.49
2,760.04 1,811.90
581.96 395.20

0.86 0.72

4.08 3.30

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.

(ii) Debt is defined as long and short term borrowings.

Note — 39 Financial Instruments

a) Categories of Financial Instruments

As at 315t March 2020

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Amortised Fair value Fair Total Fair
cost through other value Carrying value
comprehensive through Value
income profit
and loss

Financial assets

Loans 4.20 - - 4.20 4.20
Other financial assets (including Deposits) 140.21 - - 140.21 140.21
Trade receivables 433.80 - E 433.80 433.80
Cash and cash equivalents 350.04 - - 350.04 350.04
Derivative assets - . = 7.66 7.66 7.66
Investments - 42.61 - 42.61 42.61
Total financial assets 928.25 42.61 7.66 978.52 978.52
Financial liabilities

Long-term borrowings # 2,421.15 . - 2,421.15 2,421.15
Short-term borrowings 300.89 . - 300.89 300.89
Trade payables 958.63 . - 958.63 958.63
Derivative liabilities - . 61.42 61.42 61.42
Lease Liabilities 20.47 . - 20.47 20.47
Other financial liabilities 687.43 . - 687.43 687.43
Total financial liabilities - 4,388.57 - 61.42 4,449.99 4,449.99
# including current maturities of long term debt

: 5‘1-,1/4 A\



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

As at 31 March 2019 (Rupees in crores)
Particulars Amortised Fair value Fair Total Fair
cost through other value Carrying value
comprehensive through Value
income profit
and loss
Financial assets
Loans 5.36 - - 5.36 5.36
Other financial assets (including Deposits) 101.49 - - 101.49 101.49
Trade receivables 340.76 - - 340.76 340.76
Cash and cash equivalents 78.30 - - 78.30 78.30
Derivative assets - - 41.44 41.44 41.44
Investments - 69.93 - 69.93 69.93
Total financial assets 525.91 69.93 41.44 637.28 637.28
Financial liabilities
Long-term borrowings # 1,379.59 B - 1,379.59 1,379.59
Short-term borrowings 2.20 - - 2.20 2.20
Trade payables 1,533.98 - - 1,633.98 1,533.98
Derivative liabilities - - 7.89 7.89 7.89
Other financial liabilities 323.72 - - 323.72 323.72
Total financial liabilities 3,239.49 - 7.89 3,247.38 3,247.38

# including current maturities of long term debt

b) Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
The credit information is supplied by independent rating agencies where available and, if not available, the
Company uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major
customers. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is
controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management annually.

For financial assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, investments, loans and other
financial assets, the Company has assessed the change in counterparty credit risk due to COVID-19 and believe
that the same are fully recoverable.

Moreover, given the diverse nature of the Company's business, trade receivables are spread over a number of
customers with no significant concentration of credit risk. No single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
trade receivables in any of the years presented. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for
bad and doubtful debts. Therefore, the Company does not expect any material risk on account of non-
performance by any of the Company’s counterparties.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given to banks provided by
the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the maximum amount the Company could
have to pay if the guarantee is called on.

In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, the Company has considered the likelihood of increased credit
risk and consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19. The assessment is carried ouf
considering the segment of customer, impact seen in the demand outlook of these segments and the financial
strength of the customers in respect of whom amounts are receivable. Basis this assessment, the allowance for
doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2020 is considered adequate.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. The following are the list of the top five Largest customer for the Company and their credit exposure
at the end of the year:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars
Sales Value Receivable

March 31, 2020

Metalkraft Forming Industries Pvt. Ltd. 248.23 1.36
Kirby Building Systems India Pvt. Ltd. 232.41 5.52
Surendra Steel Pvt. Lid. 188.02 13.56
Arihant Steel Corporation 180.07 -
Steel Sun 178.29 0.08
March 31, 2019

Kirby Building Systems India Pvt. Ltd. 208.63 8.22
Metalkraft Forming Industries Pvt. Ltd. 208.41 7.38
Roba Metals B.V 184.13 8.49
Surendra Steel Pvt. Ltd. 193.66 -
Arihant Steel Corporation 159.62 275
2. Movement of provision for doubtful debts:

Particulars (Rupees in crore)
Balances as on April 1, 2018 0.75
Additions -

Write — off -
Balances as on March 31, 2019 ' 0.75
Additions B
Write — off -
Balances as on March 31, 2020 0.75

c) Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress or extraordinary high financing costs arising due to shortage
of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requiring financing. The
Company requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term capital expenditure
growth projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flow for operations, which together with the available
cash and cash equivalents and short term investments provide liquidity in the short-term and long-term. The
Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Company's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves
at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company
may be required to pay.



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Liability exposure as on March 31, 2020 (Rupees in crores)
Particulars <1year 1-5years >5 years Total
Non-current liabilities

Long term borrowings - 1,734.62 584.96 2,319.58
Lease Liabilities - 10.81 7.79 18.60
Total Non-Current Liabilities - 1,745.43 592.75 2,338.18
Current Liabilities

Short term borrowings 300.89 - - 300.89
Lease Liabilities 1.87 - - 1.87
Trade payables 958.63 - - 958.63
Other current financial liabilities

Deposits Received from Customers 14.53 - - 14.53
Payables for Capital Projects acceptances 176.39 - - 176.39
Payables for Capital Projects other than acceptances 431.35 431.35
Customer Liabilities 38.17 - - 38.17
Interest payables 543 - - 5.43
Others 0.35 . . 0.35
Derivative liabilities 61.42 - - 61.42
Payable to employees 21.21 . - 21.21
Current maturities of long-term debt 101.57 - - 101.57
Total current liabilities 2,111.81 - - 2,111.81
Liability exposure as on March 31, 2019 (Rupees in crores)
Particulars <1year 1-5years > 5 years Total
Non-current liabilities

Long term borrowings - 736.24 545.40 1,281.64
Total Non-Current Liabilities - 736.24 545.40 1,281.64
Current Liabilities

Short term borrowings 2.20 - - 2.20
Trade payables 1,533.98 B - 1,533.98
Other current financial liabilities

Deposits Received from Customers 10.55 - B 10.55
Payables for Capital Projects acceptances 79.86 - - 79.86
Payables for Capital Projects other than acceptances 185.20 - - 185.20
Customer Liabilities 26.07 - - 26.07
Interest payables 5.06 - - 5.06
Others 0.35 - - 0.35
Derivative liabilities 7.89 - - 7.89
Payable to employees 16.63 - - 16.63
Current maturities of long-term debt 97.95 - - 97.95
Total current liabilities 1,965.74 - - 1,965.74

Note 1: Above undiscounted amounts equals carrying value in the books.

Note 2: At March 31,2020, the Company had available Rs. 214 crores (March 31, 2019 - Rs. 624 crores) of
undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

Note 3: Derivative financial liabilities are settled on contract by contract basis accordingly the above amount
represents net amount payable as at March 31, 2020.
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

d) Commodity price risk:

The Company's revenue is exposed to the market risk of price fluctuations related to the sale of its steel products.
Market forces generally determine prices for the steel products sold by the Company. These prices may be
influenced by factors such as supply and demand, production costs (including the costs of raw material inputs) and
global and regional economic conditions and growth. Adverse changes in any of these factors may reduce the
revenue that the Company earns from the sale of its steel products.

The Company is therefore subject to fluctuations in prices for the purchase of HR coil, zinc, paint and other raw
material inputs. The Company aims to sell the products at prevailing market prices. Similarly, the Company
procures key raw materials like HR coil and zinc based on prevailing market rates as the selling prices of Coated
steel and the prices of input raw materials move in the same direction.

Commodity hedging is used primarily as a risk management tool to secure the future cash flows in case of volatility
by entering into commaodity forward contracts. The Company has entered into commodity forward contracts for
Zinc. Hedging commodity is based on its procurement schedule and price risk. Commodity hedging is undertaken
as a risk offsetting exercise and, depending upon market conditions, hedges may extend beyond the financial year.

The following table details-the Company’s-sensitivity to-a 5% movement.in-the input-price of zinc. The sensitivity
analysis includes only 5% change in commodity prices for quantity consumed during the year, with all other
variables held constant. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the commodity
prices decrease by 5% and vice-versa.

(Rupees in crores)

Commodity Increase for the year ended Decrease for the year ended
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Zinc 37.91 47.33 (37.91) (47.33)

The commodity forward contracts entered into by the Company for Zinc and outstanding at the year-end are as

under
Year Ended Nature No. of Quantity US$ equivalent INR MTM of
Contracts (MT) of Notional Equivalent Commodity
Value (Rupees in Contract
$ in Million crores) (INR crores)
March 31, 2020 Assets 3 1250 2,36 17.76 0.16
March 31, 2020 Liabilities 4 1500 3.30 24.84 3.36
March 31, 2019 Assets Nil - - - -
March 31, 2019 Liabilities Nil - - B -
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

e) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at both
fixed and floating interest rates. Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in
variable interest rate. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees and US dollars with
a mix of fixed and floating rates of interest. The Company hedges its US dollar interest rate risk through interest
rate swaps to reduce the floating interest rate risk. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising
principally on changes in base lending rate and LIBOR rates. The Company uses a mix of interest rate sensitive
financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations. The risk is
managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. Hedging
activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring that the most
cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

The following table provides a break-up of the Company's fixed and floating rate borrowings:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Fixed rate borrowings 203.23 111.36
Floating rate borrowings 2,5638.62 1,281.00
Total borrowings 2,741.85 1,392.36
Total Net borrowings 2,712.73 1,370.16
Add: Upfront fees 29.12 22.20
Total Borrowings 2,741.85 1,392.36

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating rate
liabilities, after the impact of hedge accounting, assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the year-end
was outstanding for the whole year.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates by 50 basis points higher / lower
and all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, as follows:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Increase/Decrease in basis points

INR 50 50
UsD 50 50
Effect on profit before tax

INR 6.29 2.77
UsD 6.40 3.63

f) Currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupees (INR). The Company undertakes transactions denominated
in foreign currencies; consequently, exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Volatility in exchange rates
affects the Company’s revenue from export markets and the costs of imports, primarily in relation to raw materials.
The Company is exposed to exchange rate risk under its trade and debt portfolio.

Adverse movements in the exchange rate between the Rupee and any relevant foreign currency result’s in increase
_ip-the Company’s overall debt position in Rupee terms without the Company having incurred additional debt and
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

favourable movements in the exchange rates will conversely result in reduction in the Company's receivables in
foreign currency. In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Company has a policy to hedge cash flows up to a
specific tenure using forward exchange contracts and options.

All hedging activities are carried out in accordance with the Company’s internal risk management policies, as
approved by the Board of Directors, and in accordance with the applicable regulations where the Company
operates.

The Company basis its assessment believes that the probability of the occurrence of the forecasted sales
transactions is not impacted by COVID-19 pandemic. The Company has also considered the effect of changes, if
any, in both counterparty credit risk and own credit risk while assessing hedge effectiveness and measuring hedge
ineffectiveness. The Company continues to believe that there is no impact on effectiveness of its hedges.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

the end of the reporting period are as follows.

Currency Exposure as at March 31, 2020

Assets $in Million  €in Million Rupees
in crores
Non-current assets
Long term loans and advances
Security deposits - - 12.08
Non-current investment - - 42.61
Loans and advances to related parties - - 3.18
Others - - 101.23
Total non-current assets - - 159.10
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16.77 8.21 239.22
Cash and cash equivalents - - 350.04
Derivative Instruments - - 7.66
Loans - - 1.02
Others - - 26.90
Total current assets 16.77 8.21 624.84
Liabilities $in Million  €in Million Rupees
in crores
Non-current liabilities
LLong term borrowings 189.22 4.63 854.71
Total Non-current liabilities 189.22 4.63 854.71
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings - - 300.89
Trade Payables and acceptances
Other than Acceptances 1.66 7.68 548.64
Acceptances 31.10 - 99.29
Other current financial liabilities
Deposits Received from Customers - - 14.53
Payables for Capital Projects - Other than Acceptances 1.10 1.25 412.73
Payables for Capital Projects — Acceptances 11.33 10.96 -
Payables to employees - - 21.21
Interest payable 0.13 - 4.46
Customer Liabilities - - 38.17
Others - - 0.35
Derivative liabilities - - 61.42
Current maturities of long-term debt 2.55 - 82.36
Total current liabilities 47.87 19.89  1,584.05
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Currency Exposure as at March 31, 2019

Assets $in Million  €in Million Rupees
in crores
Non-current assets
Long term loans and advances
Security deposits - - 12.73
Non-current investment - . 69.93
Loans and advances to related parties - - 4.21
Others - - 41.59
Total non-current assets - - 128.46
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 19.65 413 172.75
Cash and cash equivalents - - 78.30
Derivative Instruments - - 41.44
Loans - - 1.15
Others - - 4717
Total current assets 19.65 413 340.81

Liabilities $in Million  €in Million Rupees
in crores
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowings 121.10 - 443.98
Total Non-current liabilities 121.10 - 443.98
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings - - 2.20
Trade and other Payables and
acceptances
Other than Acceptances 21.11 - 985.80
Acceptances 49.53 - 59.54
Other current financial liabilities
Deposits Received from Customers - - 10.55
Payables for Capital Projects - Other than Acceptances 1.36 - 175.76
Payables for Capital Projects — Acceptances 11.55 - -
Interest payable - - 16.63
Customer Liabilities 0.09 - 4.46
Others - - 26.07
Derivative liabilities - - 0.35
Payable to employees - - 7.89
Current maturities of long-term debt - - 97.95
Total current liabilities 83.64 - 1,387.20

Currency risk sensitivity:
Gain/(Loss) on profit before tax

(Rupees in crores)
Effect on pre-tax equity

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Increase by 50 paise

usD (5.58) (5.91)
EURO (0.58) 0.21
Decrease by 50 paise

uUsD 5.58 5.91
EURO 0.58 (0.21)

0.34 0.30
. 0.00
(0.34) (0.30)
: (0.00)
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency
fluctuations relating to certain firm commitments, highly probable forecast transactions and foreign currency
required at the settlement date of certain receivables/payables. The use of foreign currency forward contracts is
governed by the Company's strategy approved by the board of directors, which provide principles on the use of
such forward contracts consistent with the Company's risk management policy.

The Forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding are as under:

Year Ended No. of Type US$ equivalent INR Equivalent
Contracts $ in Million (Rupees in

crores)

March 31, 2020 12 Sell 166.47 1,254.92
March 31, 2019 15 Sell 149.91 1,036.96
March 31, 2020 10 Buy 97.12 732.15
March 31, 2019 26 Buy 46.69 32299

Unhedged Foreign Currency

The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are
given below:

a) Amounts receivable in foreign currency on account of the following:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
US$ INR uUs$ INR

Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
$in Million (Rupees in $in Million (Rupees in

crores) crores)
Trade Receivables 25.81 194.58 415 28.69
b) Amounts payable in foreign currency on account of the following:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Us$ INR Us$ INR

Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent Equivalent
$in Million (Rupees in $in Million (Rupees in

crores) crores)
Trade Payables
Acceptances - - 2.84 19.64
Other than Acceptances - . 21.11 146.02
Payable for Capital Projects including 488 36.79 12 91 89.30
Acceptances
Foreign Currency Loan from Bank 162.09 1,221.91 121.19 838.25

including interest payable

g) Fair value risk

The management assessed that fair value of trade and other receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest
and claim receivables and Trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the FVTOCI quoted investments are derived from quoted market prices in active markets.

/ L{}arfyqﬁg Value of all material Non-Current Financial Assets and Liabilities reflects their fair values. B
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

h) Level wise disclosure of financial instruments

Particulars Fair values Fairvalues Level Valuation technique and key inputs
As at March As at March
31, 2020 31, 2019
Non-current investment
Investments in the equity 38.57 65.57 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
shares of JSW Energy Limited
Investments in the equity 4.04 4.36 3 Net Asset value of share arrived has
shares of Tarapur Environment been considered as fair value
Protection Society
Investments in the equity 0.22 - 3 Cost is approximate estimate of fair
shares of Hasaud Steel Limited value
Financial assets
Derivative instruments 7.66 41.44 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included

within level 1 that are observable for
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (derived from-prices).

Financial Liabilities

Derivative instruments 61.42 7.89 2 tnputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

A significant part of the financial assets is classified as Level 1 and Level 2. The fair value of these assets is marked
to an active market or based on observable market data which factors the uncertainties arising out of COVID-19.
The financial assets carried at fair value by the Company are mainly investments in equity shares and derivatives,
accordingly, any material volatility is not expected.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of the investment in unquoted equity shares:

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars Amount

Balance as on April 1, 2018 3.98
Sales -
Purchases -
Total gains/(losses) recognised in OCI 0.38
Balance as on March 31, 2019 4.36
Sales -
Purchases -
Total gains/(losses) recognised in OCI (0.32)
Balance as on March 31, 2020 4.04

In assessing the recoverability of carrying amounts of Company’s assets such as Investments, loans / advances
(net of impairment loss / loss allowance), trade receivables, inventories etc., the Company has considered various
internal and external information up to the date of approval of these financial statements and concluded that they
are recoverable based on the estimate of values of the businesses and assets based on the cash flow projections.
In making the said projections, reliance has been placed on estimates of future prices of Hot rolled Coils, Zinc &
Alloys, and assumptions relating to operational performance including significant improvement in capacity
utilisation and margins based on forecasts of demand in local/ overseas markets.

The financial projections basis which the future cash flows have been estimated consider the increase in economic

uncertainties due to COVID-19, reassessment of the discount rates, revisiting the growth rates factored while

arriving at terminal value and subjecting these variables to sensitivity analysis.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
_financial statements and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
ceanditions
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Note - 40 Related Party Disclosures

Parties with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year where control exists

1.

Holding Company
JSW Steel Limited

Subsidiaries
Hasaud Steel Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

Amba River Coke Limited

JSW Realty & Infrastructure Private Limited

Dolvi Coke Projects Limited

JSW Retail Limited

Vardhman Industries Limited (w.e.f. December 31, 2019)

JSW Vallabh Tinplate Private Limited (w.e.f. December 31, 2019)

Key management personnel (KMP)

Mr. Jayant Acharya

Mr. Rajeev Pai

Mr. Amit Agarwal (from July 01, 2019)

Mr. Dileep Bhatt (till July 31, 2018)

Mr. Amarijit Singh Dahiya (from August 1, 2018)
Mr. Hemant Shete

Ms. Deepti Walawalkar

Other related parties

Jindal Steel & Power Limited

Jindal Saw Limited

JSW Energy Limited

JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited

JSW Power Trading Company Limited

JSW Cement Limited

JSW Cement FZE

JSW Projects Limited

JSW Jaigarh Port Limited

JSW IP Holdings Private Limited

Ganga Ferro Alloys Private Limited

JSW Global Business Solution Limited (Formerly Known as Sapphire Technologies Limited)
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited Group Gratuity Trust
Tranquil Homes & Holdings Private Limited

JSW Dharamtar Port Private Limited

Jindal Stainless Limited

Jindal Technologies & Management Services Private Limited
JSW Severfield Structures Limited

Southwest Port Limited

JSW Paints Private Limited

Monnet Ispat & Energy Limited

JSW Foundation

JSW MI Steel Services Center Private Limited

Mr. Parth Jindal

JSW Realty Private Limited

JSW Sports Limited

Everbest consultancy Services Private Limited

Paradip East Quay Coal Terminal

JB Fab Infra Limited

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related

_ parties for the relevant financial year
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions

(Rupees in crores)

¥

A
vV
b

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
Purchase of Goods
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 8,675.69 - - - 8,675.69
March 31,2019  10,070.73 - - B 10,070.73
Jindal Steel & Power Limited ‘March 31, 2020 - - B 6.80 6.80
March 31, 2019 - - - 5.15 5.15
JSW Cement Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 4.26 4.26
March 31, 2019 - - B 1.31 1.31
JSW Paints Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 162.71 162.71
March 31, 2019 - - - 1.09 1.09
Total March 31, 2020 8,675.69 - - 173.77 8,849.46
March 31,2019  10,070.73 - - 7.55 10,078.28
Purchase of Capital Goods
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 54.05 - - - 54.05
March 31, 2019 82.07 - - - 82.07
Mr. Parth Jindal March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 26.71 26.71
JSW Cement Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 15.37 15.37
March 31, 2019 - - - 24.38 24.38
JSW Severfield Structures Limited March 31, 2020 E - - 0.05 0.05
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.39 0.39
Total March 31, 2020 54.05 - - 15.42 69.47
March 31, 2019 82.07 - - 51.48 133.55
Purchase of Equity Shares from JSW Steel
46,55,000 Equity Shares in JSW Energy  March 31, 2020 - - - = -
Ltd
March 31, 2019 38.35 - - - 38.35
10,000 Equity Shares in Hasaud Steel March 31, 2020 0.01 - - - 0.01
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - = = -
Total March 31, 2020 0.01 - - - 0.01
March 31, 2019 38.35 - - - 38.35
e



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
Purchase of Power & Fuel
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 171.38 171.38
March 31, 2019 - - - 185.80 185.80
Total March 31, 2020 - - - 171.38 171.38
March 31, 2019 - - - 185.80 185.80
Purchase of services
JSW Power Trading Company Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 7.75 7.75
March 31, 2019 - - - 8.03 8.03
JSW Global Business Solution Limited March 31, 2020 - - -
(Formerly known as Sapphire
Technologies Limited) (Sales . )
Commission)
March 31, 2019 - - - 11.62 11.62
JSW Global Business Solution Limited March 31, 2020 - - -
(Formerly known as Sapphire
Technologies Limited) (Shared Lo L350
Services)
March 31, 2019 - - - 15.37 15.37
Ganga Ferro Alloys Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 1.96 1.96
March 31, 2019 B - - 2.50 2.50
Southwest Port Limited March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.08 0.08
JSW Realty Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.34 0.34
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.71 0.71
JSW Retail Limited March 31, 2020 - 6.49 - - 6.49
March 31, 2019 0.51 - - 0.51
Jindal Technologies & Management March 31, 2020 ) " ) 1452 14.52
Services Private Limited
March 31, 2019 - . - 12.91 12.91
Everbest consultancy Services Pvt. Ltd. March 31, 2020 - - - 9.41 9.41
March 31, 2019 - - = z -
Total March 31, 2020 - 6.49 - 49.53 56.02
March 31, 2019 - 0.51 - 51.22 51.73
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions
{(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel

Reimbursement of Expenses incurred on behalf of the Company by

JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 89.57 - 89.57
March 31, 2019 68.52 - 68.52
Total March 31, 2020 89.57 - 89.57
March 31, 2019 68.52 - 68.52
Commission Paid
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 0.21 - 0.21
March 31, 2019 0.22 - 0.22
Total March 31, 2020 0.21 - 0.21
March 31, 2019 0.22 - 0.22
Interest Paid
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 13.97 - 13.97
March 31, 2019 49.49 - 49.49
Total March 31, 2020 13.97 - 13.97
March 31, 2019 49.49 - 49.49
Branding Fees
JSW IP Holdings Private Limited March 31, 2020 - 15.51 15.51
March 31, 2019 - 16.42 16.42
Total March 31, 2020 - 15.51 15.51
March 31, 2019 - 16.42 16.42
Brand Promotion Expenses
JSW Sports Limited March 31, 2020 - 0.18 0.18
March 31, 2019 - - -
March 31, 2020 - 0.18 0.18
March 31, 2019 - - -
Rent Paid
Tranquil Homes & Holdings Private March 31, 2020 - 0.02 0.02
Limited
March 31, 2019 - 0.02 0.02
Total March 31, 2020 - 0.02 0.02
March 31, 2019 - 0.02 0.02
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of

Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
Sale of Goods
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 114.74 - - - 114.74
March 31, 2019 74.93 - - - 74.93
Amba River Coke Limited March 31, 2020 - 0.46 E - 0.46
March 31, 2019 - - - - s
Jindal Steel & Power Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 6.98 6.98
March 31, 2019 - - - 5.81 5.81
JSW Structural Metal Decking Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 6.43 6.43
March 31, 2019 - - - 10.65 10.65
Jindal Saw Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 3.38 3.38
March 31, 2019 - - - 2.40 2.40
JSW Cement Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 2.47 247
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.84 0.84
Dolvi Coke Projects Ltd March 31, 2020 - - - = -
March 31, 2019 - 0.29 - - 0.29
JSW Jaigarh Port Ltd March 31, 2020 - - - 0.24 0.24
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.46 0.46
JSW Paints Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.10 0.10
March 31, 2019 - - - 219 2.19
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.33 0.33
March 31, 2019 - - - 6.81 6.81
Monnet Ispat & Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 3.10 3.10
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.62 0.62
JSW M Steel Services Center Pvt Ltd March 31, 2020 - - - 6.83 6.83
March 31, 2019 - - - 4.25 4.25
JSW Vallabh Tinplate Private Limited March 31, 2020 - 0.56 - - 0.56
March 31, 2019 - 64.50 - - 64.50
Vardhman Industries Ltd March 31, 2020 - 68.05 - - 68.05
March 31, 2019 - - - = -
JSW Cement FZE March 31, 2020 - - - 0.43 0.43

March 31, 2019



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions
{Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
Others March 31, 2020 - - - 0.40 0.40
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.72 0.72
Total March 31, 2020 114.74 69.07 - 30.69 214.50
March 31, 2019 74.93 64.79 - 34.75 174.47
Sale of Licenses
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 51.29 - - - 51.29
March 31, 2019 44.87 - - - 44.87
Total March 31, 2020 51.29 - - - 51.29
March 31, 2019 44.87 - - - 44.87
Interest / Dividend Received
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 17.54 - - - 17.54
March 31, 2019 - - - = -
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 B - - 0.90 0.90

March 31, 2019 - - - - -
JSW Global Business Solution Limited March 31, 2020
(Formerly known as Sapphire - - - 0.54 0.54
Technologies Limited)

March 31, 2019 - - - 0.71 0.71
Ganga Ferro Alloys Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.01 0.01
JSW Paints Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.65 0.65
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
Total March 31, 2020 17.54 - - 2.09 19.63
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.72 0.72
Other Income

JSW Realty & Infrastructure Private March 31, 2020 3} 182 i i 182

Limited ’ '
March 31, 2019 - 1.47 - - 1.47
JSW Paints Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 1.07 1.07
March 31, 2019 - - - 1.06 1.06
Total March 31, 2020 - 1.82 - 1.07 2.89
March 31, 2019 - 1.47 - 1.06 2.53
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
Recovery of Expenses incurred by the Company on
behalf of
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 9.92 - - - 9.92
March 31, 2019 13.45 - - - 13.45
Jindal Technologies & Management March 31, 2020
Services Private Ltd . } i ) )
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.53 0.53
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.51 0.51
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.47 0.47
Total March 31, 2020 9.92 - - 0.51 10.43
March 31, 2019 13.45 - - 1.00 14.45
Adjustment of receivable/(payable)
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 605.01 - - - 605.01
March 31, 2019 110.01 - : - - 110.01
Total March 31, 2020 605.01 - - - 605.01
March 31,2019  110.01 - - - 110.01
Loans and advances given
JSW Global Business Solution Limited March 31, 2020 - - - - -
(Formerly known as Sapphire
Technologies Ltd.)
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.68 0.68
Ganga Ferro Alloys Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.02 0.02
JSW Paints Private Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 35.00 35.00
March 31, 2019 - - - - =
Total March 31, 2020 - - - 35.00 35.00
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.70 0.70
Donation/ CSR expenses
JSW Foundation March 31, 2020 - - - 0.98 0.98
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.86 0.86
Total March 31, 2020 - - - 0.98 0.98
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.86 0.86
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Related party transactions
(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Other related Total
Transaction Company Fellow Management parties
Subsidiaries Personnel

Contribution to defined benefit plan
JSW Steel Coated Products Limited March 31, 2020 - - -
Group Gratuity Trust

March 31, 2019 - - - 2.00 2.00
Total March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 2.00 2.00
Remuneration
Mr Amit Agrawal (from July 01, 2019) March 31, 2020 - - 1.79 - 1.79
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
Mr. Dileep Bhatt (upto July 31, 2018) March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - 1.08 - 1.08
Mr. Amarjit Singh Dahiya (from August March 31, 2020 - - 0.99 - 0.99
1, 2018)
March 31, 2019 - - 0.54 - 0.54
Mr. Hemant Shete March 31, 2020 - - 0.85 - 0.85
March 31, 2019 - - 0.92 - 0.92
Ms. Deepti Walawalkar March 31, 2020 - - 0.13 - 0.13
March 31, 2019 - - 0.13 - 0.13
Total March 31, 2020 - - 3.76 - 3.76
March 31, 2019 - - 2.67 - 2.67
Allotment of Shares
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 750.00 - - - 750.00
March 31, 2019 - - - - £
March 31, 2020 750.00 - B - 750.00

March 31, 2019 - - - - -

Investment in Equity Shares

Hasaud Steel Limited March 31, 2020 - 0.21 - - 0.21
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
March 31, 2020 - 0.21 - - 0.21

March 31, 2019 - e - - -

Notes: 1. The Remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an actuarial
basis for the Company as a whole.

== 2. The Remuneration to the key managerial personnel includes Share based payment expenses recognised based on ESOP plan (Refer Note 36).
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JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Closing balance of Related Parties

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Management Other related parties Total
Transaction Company Fellow Personnel
Subsidiaries
Trade Payables
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 - ~ - = .
March 31, 2019 679.24 - - - 679.24
JSW Power Trading March 31, 2020 - - - 10.30 10.30
Company Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 7.46 7.46
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 47.51 47.51
March 31, 2019 - - - 16.22 16.22
JSW Global Business March 31, 2020 - - - 5.49 5.49
Solution Limited
{Formerly known as
Sapphire
Technologies Limited)
(Auction sale)
March 31, 2019 - - - 5.85 5.85
JSW Severfield March 31, 2020 - - - 0.83 0.83
Structures Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.83 0.83
JSW Paints Private March 31, 2020 B - - 5.56 5.56
Limited
March 31, 2019 B B - 1.15 1.15
Jindal Technologles & March 31, 2020 - - - 0.90 0.90
Management
Services Private
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.52 0.52
JSW Realty & March 31, 2020 - 0.87 - - 0.87
Infrastructure Private
Limited (JSWIPL)
March 31, 2019 - 0.49 - - 0.49
JSW Cement Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 8.90 8.90
March 31, 2019 - - - 1.30 1.30

~AYC



JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Closing balance of Related Parties

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of
Transaction

Name of Company

Ganga Ferro Alloys
Private Limited
(Services)

JSW IP Holdings
Private Limited

JSW Retail Limited
Tranquil Homes &
Holdings Private

Limited

Everbest Services
Private Limited

JSW Dharamtar Port
Private Limited

JSW Foundation

Others

Total

Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Management Other related parties Total
Company Fellow Personnel
Subsidiaries

March 31, 2020 - - - 0.13 0.13
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.21 0.21
March 31, 2020 - - - 2.56 2.56
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
March 31, 2020 - 0.72 - - 0.72
March'31, 2019 - 0.51 - - 0.51
March 31, 2020 - - - 0.00 0.00
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.00 0.00
March 31, 2020 - - - 1.87 1.87
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
March 31, 2020 - - - 0.38 0.38
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
March 31, 2020 - - - 1.17 1.17
March 31, 2019 - - = - -
March 31, 2020 - - - - -
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.04 0.04
March 31, 2020 - 1.59 - 85.60 87.19
March 31, 2019 679.24 1.00 - 33.60 713.84




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Closing balance of Related Parties

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Management Other related parties Total
Transaction Company Fellow Personnel
Subsidiaries
Advance Received from
Customers
Jindal Saw Limited March 31, 2020 - . - 1.08 1.08
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.13 0.13
Jindal Steel & Power March 31, 2020 - - - 0.26 0.26
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.21 0.21
JSW Jaigarh Port March 31, 2020 - . - 0.03 0.03
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.27 0.27
JSW Cement Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.03 0.03
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.04 0.04
Amba River Coke March 31, 2020 - 0.46 - - 0.46
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
JSW Structural Metal March 31, 2020 - - - 0.09 0.09
Decking Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 B - - 0.25 0.25
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
Paradip East Quay March 31, 2020 - - - 0.19 0.19
Coal Terminal
March 31, 2019 ~ - - - -
Others March 31, 2020 - - " 0.05 0.05
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.09 0.09
March 31, 2020 - 0.46 - 1.98 244
U0l . March 31, 2019 : : - 0.74 0.74




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Closing balance of Related Parties

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Management Other related parties Total
Transaction Company Fellow Personnel
Subsidiaries
Loan and Advances paid including -
deposits
JSW Steel Limited March 31, 2020 164.27 - - - 164.27
March 31, 2019 - - - - =
JSW Global Business March 31, 2020 - - - 4.20 4.20
Solution Limited
(Formerly known as
Sapphire
Technologies Limited)
March 31, 2019 - - - 5.31 5.31
JSW IP Holdings March 31, 2020 - - - 1.00 1.00
Private Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 2.48 2.48
Jindal Steel & Power March 31, 2020 ~ = - 0.32 0.32
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.02 0.02
Others March 31, 2020 - . - 0.02 0.02
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.05 0.05
T March 31, 2019 164.27 - - 5.54 169.81
ozt March 31, 2019 - E : 7.86 7.86
Trade Receivables
JSW Paints Private March 31, 2020 - - - 0.10 0.10
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 1.08 1.08
JSW Energy Limited March 31, 2020 - - = = -
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.16 0.16
Dolvi Coke Projects March 31, 2020 - - - - -
Limited
March 31, 2019 - 0.05 - - 0.05




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Closing balance of Related Parties

(Rupees in crores)

Nature of Name of Company Year Holding Subsidiaries/ Key Management Other related parties Total
Transaction Company Fellow Personnel
Subsidiaries
JSW MI Steel March 31, 2020 - - - 0.18 0.18
Services Center
Private Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.53 0.53
JSW Vallabh Tinplate March 31, 2020 - 248 - - 2.48
Private Limited
March 31, 2019 B 16.76 - - 16.76
JSW Structural Metal March 31, 2020 - - - - -
Decking Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - 0.01 0.01
Amba River Coke March 31, 2020 - - - - -
Limited
March 31, 2019 - 0.01 - - 0.01
JSW Projects Limited March 31, 2020 - - - 0.06 0.06
March 31, 2019 - - - = -
Vardhman Industries March 31, 2020 - 34.06 - - 34.06
Limited
March 31, 2019 - - - - -
I March 31, 2020 - 36.54 - 0.34 36.88
Lt March 31, 2019 : 16.82 . 1.78 18.60
Investment in Gratuity Fund
JSW Steel Coated March 31, 2020 - - - 17.61 17.61
Products Limited
Group Gratuity Trust
March 31, 2019 - - - 19.71 19.71
March 31, 2020 - - - 17.61 17.61
el March 31, 2019 - - - 19.71 19.71




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Notes:

1. JSW Steel Limited (The Holding Company) has provided a Letter of Comfort (LOC) in favor of the Bank for the
Term Loan sanctioned and disbursed in favour of the Company.

2. JSW Steel Limited (The Holding Company) has provided Corporate Guarantees in favour of the Company for
Rs. 24.54 crores (March 31, 2019 Rs. 24.54 crores)

3. The Company has given an advance of Rs 35 crores to JSW Paints Limited for business purposes during the
year. The advance balance as at March 31, 2020 is Rs. 35 crores (March 31, 2019 - Nil) which has been shown
under 'Advance to Suppliers' in Note no 12. The advance carries an interest rate of SBI MCLR + 210 bps and
will be adjusted against the supplies due after 11 months but before 365 days from date of advance.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those as prevailing in arm's length
transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and interest is charged, wherever applicable,
and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amount owed by related parties (March 31, 2019 - Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken
in each financial year through examining the financial position of related parties and the market in which the related
party operates.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

(Rupees in crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Short Term employee benefits 3.76 2.67
Share-based payment expense 0.31 2.66
Total Compensation Paid to key management personnel 4.07 5.33

Note - 41 Additional Information

A) C.I.F value of imports
(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital goods 395.71 357.06
Raw materials 668.92 1,136.38
Stores & spare parts 6.49 4.98
Other services 0.00 4,02
Total 1,071.12 1,502.44
S\, B




JSW STEEL COATED PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

B) Expenditure in foreign currency
(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Interest and finance charges 64.70 39.43
Ocean freight 28.46 8.10
Commission on sales 10.21 10.99
Legal and professional fees 0.53 0.29
Others 1.12 1.40
Total 105.02 60.21

C) Earnings in foreign currency
(Rupees in crores)

Particulars For the Year For the Year
Ended Ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
F.O.B value of exports 2,675.46 3,363.21
Total 2,675.46 3,363.21

Note - 42 Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events which have occurred after the reporting period.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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